National United Resources Holdings Limitec

BRESERERERAF

( Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability )
(REBFMELH AR AR
Stock Code B : 254

2016

Annual Report
F



Corporate Information

Management Discussion and Analysis
Directors’ Biographies

Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Five-Year Financial Summary

NEEH
EEERmED
BExRER
BEEams
EEERME
BB E
fFeEmR
FeE2ERAR
fFE MBI R
FEEREHR
HERSRER
B T SRR BT A
hEMBHRE

Contents

1

BEREAERIERERAR
20165

H &%

Page
"X

18
21
37
55
60
61
62
64
65
68
144



Corporate Information

NAEEHR

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman)
Mr. Guo Peiyuan

Non-executive Director
Mr. An Jingwen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Wen

Mr. Qiu Ke

Ms. Chen Yen Yung

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Li Wen — Chairman

Mr. An Jingwen

Mr. Qiu Ke

Ms. Chen Yen Yung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Qiu Ke — Chairman

Mr. An Jingwen

Mr. Li Wen

Ms. Chen Yen Yung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Ji Kaiping — Chairman

Mr. Li Wen

Mr. Qiu Ke

Ms. Chen Yen Yung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Ji Kaiping
Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie

LEGAL ADVISOR
Baker & McKenzie

2 National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

%

BITES
RIS ()
BEEL

FBITES
BREXFEE

BYFHTES
FXRE
Bt
REEL L

BEREEE
FXSRE-EE
RN
BB St
BAZL T

FHWEEE
B~ £
RN
FXE
BAZL T

REZEE
RAF ke E
FXE

BB St
BAZL T

DNAEME
BRI &+

RRERAE
RAT
BRI &+

EEEB

A e BRI EREBA



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Unit 2806, 28th Floor, Wu Chung House,
213 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Abacus Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.nur.com.hk

STOCK CODE
254

Corporate Information

DNEEHR

BB
ERE R F S HERA A

FEARRT
LR (BB BERAT
RERIT () BRAF

MR ERE
BT
ERRNER2139
A K E 28182806 %

BROBFERTE
BEERMHER QA
&5
BERER1835%

A FIr L5418

NN

www.nur.com.hk

IR 43X 5%

254

BEREAERIERERAR 3
20165



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2016, National United Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) has engaged in
business and reportable segment as follows:

(i) Car rental

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Acquisition of Gear World”
below, the completion of the Acquisition of Gear World (as defined
below) took place on 31 August 2016. Since then, the Group engages
in (i) shuttle bus services for employees/students of institutional
customers between the working places/schools to different residential
communities by conventional energy vehicles and/or electric buses; (ii)
car rental services; and (iii) car rental services for different business and
leisure purpose such as pick-up services requested by the institutional or
individual customers.

(ii) Online platform

The Group commenced online platform for the trading and deferred
spot delivery services of precious metals business in the fourth quarter of
2015, through the acquisition of Million Fortune International Investment
Limited (“Million Fortune”), a 70%-owned subsidiary of the Company
which holds indirectly 90% equity interest and/or economic benefit in
FHBEeERZSHP 0 (ES)BRARF (formerly known as & & E
ESBXSPOLRMAEBRDF ("FMEIE", together with Million
Fortune, the “Million Fortune Group”). The Million Fortune Group
engages in the provision of online platform for trading and deferred spot
delivery services of precious metals mainly being silver and copper, and
other associated services including transaction settlement management,
commodity delivery management and related consulting services to
customers nationwide in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The revenue of this segment represented the handling fees charged to
end customers who utilized the online trading platform.

(iii) Resources trading
The Group had diversified its resources and business to trading of coking
coal. The Group encountered downward trend for the past few years in
this business segment. The coal market continued to diminish and coal
price remained at a low level due to ongoing sluggish demand and the
stricter environmental protection governance. No revenue was recorded
in the year of 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)
(iv) Media and advertising

*

The Group operates outdoor advertisement mediums/billboards provision
business, advertisement design and production, graphic and brand
design services as well as corporate culture consultancy in the PRC and in
Mongolia.

The Group also operated media and advertising business via It R E 5
BHESEABR AR (Beijing Mega TV Media Advertisement Company
Limited*) (“Beijing Mega TV Media"”) through the Loan Agreement,
the Share Charge, the Irrevocable Share Transfer Agreement, the
Shareholders Undertaking, the Director Undertaking, the Management
Agreement and the Assignment (the “Control Agreement”). For details
of the Control Agreement, please refer to the 2015 Annual Report of the
Company.

Through the Control Agreement, the Group may engage in indoor
advertising business in the PRC through operating chain broadcasting
networks of large screen television channels at the atriums of major
shopping malls and department stores in the PRC.

However, due to the loss of control over Beijing Mega TV Media and the
deconsolidation of its results, assets and liabilities and cash flows from
the financial statements of the Group from 1 January 2016, no revenue
from this segment arisen for the year of 2016.

Due to the nil revenue and insignificant net asset of the business
maintained since the year of 2016, this segment of business was fade-
out and the leftover resources would be arranged for the rest of business
operations and development.

For identification purposes only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R R e

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Disposal of Heng Xin Shares

From 2 October 2015 to 14 April 2016, the Company disposed an aggregate
of 332,920,000 of the ordinary shares (“Heng Xin Shares”) of Heng Xin
China Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8046) (“Heng Xin"), whose shares were
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) at the relevant time, on the market in a series of transactions
at the price ranged between HK$0.112 and HK$0.290 per Heng Xin Share
for an aggregate gross sale proceeds of approximately HK$58,222,000
(excluding transaction costs) (the “First Disposal”). The consideration of
the First Disposal represented the prevailing market price of the Heng Xin
Shares at the time of the First Disposal. As the First Disposal was made on
the market, the Company is not aware of the identity(ies) of the purchaser(s)
of the Heng Xin Shares. To the best of the knowledge, information and
belief of the then directors of the Company (the “Directors”), having made
all reasonable enquiries, the purchaser(s) of the Heng Xin Shares and their
ultimate beneficial owner(s) are independent third parties. The disposed Heng
Xin Shares represented approximately 4.28% of the issued share capital of
Heng Xin (based on the 7,782,797,837 Heng Xin Shares as at 31 March
2016 according to the monthly return of Heng Xin dated 6 April 2016). The
First Disposal constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and is therefore subject to the notification
and announcement requirements of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated on 14 April 2016 for more details.

During the period of 23 February 2016 to 7 June 2016, the Company
exercised its rights attaching to the 5% coupon convertible bonds due
2017 issued by Heng Xin on 5 February 2016 in the principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 and subscribed by the Company on 8 December 2015 (the
“Heng Xin Convertible Bonds"”) to convert the Heng Xin Convertible Bonds in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$44,999,960 into 391,304,000 Heng Xin
Shares at the conversion price of HK$0.115 per Heng Xin Share, representing
approximately 4.89% of the issued share capital of Heng Xin as at 31 May
2016 as enlarged by the 43,480,000 Heng Xin Shares to be issued upon the
conversion of the Heng Xin Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$5,000,200 pursuant to the conversion notice served by the Company on
7 June 2016 (the “Conversions”).

The Company also subscribed for 220,000,000 new Heng Xin Shares at
the subscription price of HK$0.10 per Heng Xin Share on 27 August 2015
pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the Company
and Heng Xin on 18 August 2015 (the “Acquisition of Heng Xin Shares”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD (cont’d)

Disposal of Heng Xin Shares (cont'd)

The Conversions and the Acquisition of Heng Xin Shares, when aggregate,
constitute a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules and is subject to the notification and announcement
requirements under the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 7 June 2016.

From 15 April 2016 to 17 August 2016, the Company disposed an aggregate
of 321,864,000 Heng Xin Shares on the market in a series of transactions at
the price ranged between HK$0.093 and HK$0.242 per Heng Xin Share for
an aggregate gross sale proceeds of approximately HK$50,071,000 (excluding
transaction costs) (the “Second Disposal”). The consideration of the Second
Disposal represented the prevailing market price of the Heng Xin Shares at
the time of the Second Disposal. As the Second Disposal was made on the
market, the Company is not aware of the identity(ies) of the purchasers of
the Heng Xin Shares. To the best of the knowledge, information and belief
of the then Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, the purchasers
of the Heng Xin Shares and their ultimate beneficial owners are independent
third parties. The disposed Heng Xin Shares represented approximately
3.94% of the issued share capital of Heng Xin (based on the 8,174,109,837
Heng Xin Shares as at 19 August 2016 according to the Next Day Disclosure
Return of Heng Xin dated 19 August 2016). The Second Disposal constitutes
a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules and is subject to the notification and announcement requirements
under the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 19 August 2016.

Acquisition of Gear World

Nation Spirit Limited and Blissful Elite Limited, as vendors, their respective
beneficial owners, as guarantors, and NUR New Energy Management
Company Limited, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser
(“NUR New Energy”) entered into the sale and purchase agreement dated
15 January 2016 (as amended by a supplemental agreement dated 24 June
2016) (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) to acquire all equity interest of
Gear World Development Limited (“Gear World"”) (the “Acquisition of Gear
World”). On 31 August 2016, the Company announced that the completion
of the Acquisition of Gear World took place. Upon completion of the
Acquisition of Gear World, Gear World became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and the subsidiaries of Gear World, being 1t 5 X 5 @5t /9
BEHEHFR QA (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Car Rental Co., Ltd*) (“TMTC")
and t R X E @R FEER AR (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Travel
Transportation Co., Ltd*) ("TMTC Travel”, together with “Gear World” and
"TMTC", the "TMTC Group”) became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
and a 49%-owned associate of the Company respectively.

*  For identification purposes only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD (cont'd)

Acquisition of Gear World (cont'd)

In relation to the acquisition by NUR New Energy of entire issued share capital
of Gear World at a consideration of HK$800,000,000, subject to downward
adjustments as set out in the Sale and Purchase Agreement, ultimately, the
consideration of the Acquisition of Gear World of HK$200,000,000 was
settled by cash of HK$60,000,000 (in which HK$30,000,000 was yet to be
paid as at 31 December 2018) and issued convertible bonds on 6 September
2016 in the principal amount of HK$140,000,000 (the “"TMCB1") which bear
interest at the rate of 3% per annum.

NUR New Energy confirmed with the vendors that NUR New Energy was not
obligated to pay any further consideration since the TMTC Group achieved no
profit in guarantee periods.

Relevant disclosure was made in the Company’s announcements dated 15
January 2016, 30 March 2016, 31 May 2016, 24 June 2016, 18 July 2016,
31 August 2016, 14 February 2017 and 22 February 2017, and the circular of
the Company dated 30 June 2016.

Acquisition of New Electric Buses

On 9 December 2016, TMTC, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with 1t ®BFKTE
$HE AR AA] (the “Supplier”) to purchase 100 units of new electric buses
(the "Vehicles”) from the Supplier at an aggregate consideration of RMB67.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$76.7 million).

Under the above sale and purchase agreement, the unit price of the Vehicle
is RMB1,678,000 and the aggregate subsidies provided by the government
at the national and municipal levels for electric bus purchases in Beijing
amounting to RMB1,000,000 each. As such, the net purchase price of the
Vehicle is RMB678,000 each.

These transaction could speed up the process of replacing conventional
energy vehicles into new energy vehicles, which enable TMTC to reduce
its procurement cost and operational cost per vehicle, and also expand
the market share of car rental services and tour bus services of TMTC. The
Vehicles were put into service in 2017. Relevant disclosure of the transaction
may refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 December 2016.

8 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD (cont’d)

Acquisition of Million Fortune

On 8 July 2015, Dengyi Investments Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser (the “Purchaser”), Antel
Classification Limited, World Dragon Enterprise Limited, Guojin Holdings
Co. Ltd, Nuts Technology Co., Ltd (collectively as the “Vendors”) and Ms.
Sun Jianjing, Mr. Zhang Zhijie and Mr. Sun Xiaoyang (collectively as the
“Guarantors”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Qingdao
SPA"), pursuant to which the Vendors conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase an aggregate of 7,000 ordinary
shares of Million Fortune (representing 70% equity interest in its entire issued
share capital) at a consideration of HK$400,000,000 (the “Acquisition of
Million Fortune”). Million Fortune is principally engaged in investment holding
and indirectly holds 90% equity interest in FfitBl&. FMEIE is principally
engaged in the provision of an online platform for trading and deferred spot
delivery services of precious metals, such as silver, nonferrous metals and
other valuable commodities as well as other associated services.

Pursuant to the Qingdao SPA, the consideration of HK$400,000,000 (subject
to downward adjustments) would be satisfied by the following manner: (i)
as to the sum of HK$120,000,000 would be settled by way of issue of the
zero-coupon convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$120,000,000
("QDCB1") at the initial conversion price of HK$0.40 per conversion share,
as part payment upon completion; and (ii) as to the sum of HK$280,000,000
would be settled by way of issue of the convertible bond in the principal
amount of HK$280,000,000 (“QDCB2") at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.40 per conversion share, as final payment of the consideration. The
Acquisition of Million Fortune was completed on 10 November 2015.

Pursuant to the Qingdao SPA, each of the Vendors and the Guarantors was
undertaken that the consolidated net profit (after taxation and excludes any
profit/(loss) deriving from the discontinued operation(s) and activities not
within the usual course of business of the Million Fortune Group) as shown in
the audited accounts of the Million Fortune Group for the twelve full calendar
months period immediately after completion as audited by the auditors to be
appointed by the Company (the “Profit Guarantee”) shall not be less than
HK$45,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Profit”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R R e

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD (cont’d)

Acquisition of Million Fortune (cont'd)

In the event that the Guaranteed Profit is not achieved, the amount of
total consideration will be adjusted downward. The Company received
the confirmation letter issued by the auditors appointed by the Company,
ratifying that the actual profit for the twelve months ended 31 October
2016 was HK$14,987,252 and therefore the Guaranteed Profit of
HK$45,000,000 had not been met. Accordingly, the consideration for the
Acquisition of Million Fortune had been adjusted downward of the shortfall
of HK$266,779,982. The QDCB2 in the principal amount of HK$13,220,018
was issued by the Company to the Vendors on 31 March 2017 as the final
payment of the consideration in accordance with the terms of the Qingdao
SPA. Accordingly, each of the Vendors and the Guarantors has fulfilled its/
his obligations in accordance with the Qingdao SPA in relation to the Profit
Guarantee.

The failure to meet the Profit Guarantee caused in a decrease of contingent
consideration and impairment of goodwill which arising on the acquisition of
70% equity interest in Million Fortune.

Details of the Acquisition of Million Fortune were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 8 July 2015, 10 November 2015, 23
December 2016, 9 February 2017 and 31 March 2017 and the Company’s
circular dated 30 September 2015.

Deconsolidation of Subsidiaries

The Directors considered that the control over the subsidiaries, as disclosed in
note 2 to the financial statements, has been lost from 1 January 2016. Due
to the loss of contact with former Directors, the results, assets and liabilities
and cash flows of these subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the financial
statements of the Group from 1 January 2016.

1 O National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group was decreased from approximately HK$77.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately HK$51.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease of approximately
33.5%. Nevertheless, the gross profit of the Group was decreased from
approximately HK$24.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately HK$19.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
representing a decrease of approximately 22.5%, but the gross profit margin
increased from approximately 31.9% for the year ended 31 December 2015
to approximately 37.2% for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The cost of sales decreased from approximately HK$53.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately HK$32.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease of approximately 38.7%.

In addition, the Group recorded an increase in loss for the year from
approximately HK$133.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately HK$1,442.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
representing an increase in loss of approximately 981.6%, which was
primarily attributable to the increase in (i) provision of prepayment amounted
to approximately HK$193.7 million, (ii) impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$25.3 million, (iii) impairment losses
on goodwill of approximately HK$791.1 million, (iv) impairment loss on
intangible assets amounted to HK$77.0 million, (v) impairment losses on trade
receivables approximately HK$0.8 million, (vi) impairment losses on interests
in associates amounted to approximately HK$208.9 million, and (vii) loss on
deconsolidation of subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$238.9 million.

The non-current assets were decreased by HK$612.1 million from HK$777.5
million as at 31 December of 2015 to HK$165.3 million as at 31 December
2016. Other than property, plant and equipment in non-current asset were
disposed, impaired or deconsolidated during the year 2016. Therefore, the
property, plant and equipment representing 100% of total non-current assets
as at 31 December 2016.

The increase in carrying amount of property, plant and equipment by
HK$104.0 million to approximately HK$165.3 million was result from the
acquisition of TMTC Group that brought motor vehicle and trucks with cost
of HK$151.6 million, additions of property, plant and equipment with cost of
approximately HK$1.9 million, deconsolidation of subsidiaries with carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$1.3 million,
depreciation charged for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
HK$17.8 million, impairment loss of approximately HK$25.3 million, disposal
of property, plant and equipment and exchange differences in sum of
approximately HK$5.1 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont'd)

The current asset of the Group decreased from approximately HK$1,105.3
million as at 31 December 2015 to approximately HK$303.2 million as at 31
December 2016 which were mainly due to the deconsolidation of subsidiaries
and impairment of trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, bonds mature for redemption in April 2016, decrease in pledged
bank deposits and bank and cash balances.

On the other hand, the current liabilities of the Group were decreased from
approximately HK$655.1 million as at 31 December 2015 to approximately
HK$526.4 million as at 31 December 2016. The decreased were results from
the decrease in trade payables due to the deconsolidation of subsidiaries,
repayment of borrowings and current portion of non-convertible bonds,
although there were increase in current liabilities by (i) an increase of other
payables and accruals, convertible bonds and finance lease payables, and (ii)
fair value gain of derivative instruments.

The convertible bonds, non-convertible bonds and finance lease payables
consists of non-current and current liabilities as at 31 December 2016. (i)
On 31 August 2016, the convertible bonds were increased by the Company
with liability component of approximately HK$106.1 million or the principal
amount of HK$140 million (the "TMCB1") which bear interest rate of 3% per
annum as part of the consideration for the Acquisition of Gear World. The
interest charge on total convertible bonds for the year of HK$16.0 million also
made an increase in convertible bonds after part of other convertible bonds
were converted into shares amounted to approximately HK$9.5 million. (ii)
During the year, the Company issued twelve (2015:seven) 6% non-convertible
bonds with a nominal value of HK$90.5 million (2015: HK$96,220,000).
Interest charged of non-convertible bonds during the year amounted to
approximately HK$10.7 million. After repayment and interest paid or payable
classify to other payables in sum of approximately HK$255.0 million during
the year, the total non-convertible bonds were decreased from HK$254.8
million as at 31 December 2015 to HK$100.9 million as 31 December 2016.
(iii) Addition finance lease payables were brought by the Acquisition of Gear
World and motor vehicles with carrying amount amounted to HK$130.0
million were pledged accordingly. Therefore, there is significant increase in
finance lease payables during the year, which increased from HK$3.5 million
as at 31 December 2015 to HK$217.4 million as 31 December 2016.

1 2 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2016, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$3,178,754,000 divided into 6,411,770,500 shares (the “Shares”).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group financed its operations
by (i) cash flow from operating activities; (ii) funding through issuance of the
non-convertible bonds, and (iii) funding through issuance of new Shares. As
at 31 December 2016, the cash and bank balances of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$112.5 million (31 December 2015: HK$420.9 million),
in which of HK$65 million deposit pledged to banks (31 December 2015:
HK$237.5 million).

Share Subscription

On 11 April 2016, the Company entered into a conditional agreement with
Upper Target Limited (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue a total of 496,000,000 Shares (the “Subscription
Shares”) at a price of HK$0.165 per Subscription Share under the general
mandate granted to the Directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the
Company passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 1
June 2015 (the “Share Subscription™).

The subscription price of HK$0.165 per Subscription Share representing a
discount of approximately 17.50% to the closing price of HK$0.20 per Share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 11 April 2016. The Share Subscription
completed on 11 May 2016.

The reasons for carrying out the Share Subscription were to strengthen the
financial position (in particular the working capital and cash flow position) of
the Group and provide further funding to the Group for its development and
investment with an objective to provide attractive returns for the shareholders
of the Company.

The net proceeds arising from the Share Subscription amounted to
approximately HK$81.8 million (equivalent to a net price of approximately
HK$0.1649 per Share), which was used by the Company (i) as to
approximately HK$25 million for settlement of debt and related interests;
(i) as to approximately HK$25 million for investment activities when such
investment opportunities arise; and (iii) as to approximately HK$31.8 million
as general working capital of the Group.

Details of the Share Subscription were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 11 April 2016.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE (cont’d)

Conversion of Convertible Bond

On 28 April 2016, the Company issued and allotted 42,000,000 Shares
upon exercise of the conversation rights in respect of QDCB1 in the principal
amount of HK$16,800,000 at conversion price of HK$0.40 per conversion
share.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$303.2 million (2015: HK$1,105.3 million), while its current liabilities were
approximately HK$526.4 million (2015: HK$655.1 million). The current ratio
of the Group was approximately 0.6 times (2015:1.7 times) and gearing ratio
(total debt/total equity) was nil (2015: 0.6 times).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$112.5 million (2015: HK$420.9 million). During the
year, the Group obtain financial resources mainly from proceeds from issue
of Shares of approximately HK$81.8 million, proceeds from issue of non-
convertible bonds of approximately HK$90.5 million and net proceeds from
disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss approximately
HK$124.1 million.

Issue of Non-convertible Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company issued twelve 6%
non-convertible bonds (the “NCBs”) in an aggregate principle amount of
HK$90.5 million. The NCBs are redeemable at the discretion of the Company
at 100% of the principle amount of such NCBs together with payment of
interest accrued up to the date of such early redemption by serving at least
ten calendar days written notice at any time before the maturity date. The
NCBs will be redeemed on the date immediately following twelve to twenty-
four months after the first date of issue of the NCBs. The NCBs carry interest
rate of 6% per annum, which is payable annually in arrears.

Issue of Convertible Bonds

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Acquisition of Gear World” above, the
Company issued the TMCB1 in the aggregate principal amount of HK$140
million to Nation Spirit Limited and Blissful Elite Limited on 6 September
2016 as part of the consideration for the Acquisition of Gear World. TMCB1
carry interest at a rate of 3% per annum, which are payable on the third
anniversary of the date of issuance of the TMCB1. The TMCB1 entitle
the holder to convert the TMCB1 into Shares at initial conversion price of
HK$0.30 per conversion share (subject to adjustments) during the period from
the date of issue to the date of maturity and a maximum of 466,666,666
Shares can be issued under specific mandate granted to the Directors by a
resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed at the general meeting
of the Company held on 18 July 2016.

1 4 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (cont'd)

Issue of Convertible Bonds (cont'd)

The initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments) representing a premium of approximately 32.74% to the closing
price of the Shares of HK$0.2260 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 15 January 2016, being the date of signing of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the majority of the Group's
income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) and Hong
Kong dollars. Up to 31 December 2016, the management of the Company
was of the opinion that the Group has insignificant exposure to foreign
exchange risk. As a result, the Group did not use any financial instruments
for hedging against fluctuation in foreign exchange for the year ended 31
December 2016. Nevertheless, the management of the Company will closely
monitor and from time to time reassess the exchange risk exposures of the
Group and enter into non-speculative hedging arrangements if considered
necessary.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 575 employees (including Directors)
in Hong Kong and the PRC (31 December 2015: 73 employees (including
Directors) in Hong Kong, the PRC and Mongolia). The Group continues
to provide remuneration packages to employees according to market
practices, their experience and performance. Remuneration policy is basically
determined with reference to individual performance as well as the financial
results of the Group. Remuneration to staff will be revised from time to time
when warranted considering the performances of staff. Other benefits include
medical insurance scheme and contribution of statutory mandatory provident
fund for the employees. The Group also adopted a share option scheme
whereby qualified participants may be granted options to acquire Shares.
There has been no major change in staff utilized policies during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recorded borrowings of approximately
HK$217.5 million (31 December 2015: HK$251.8 million), in which
approximately HK$61.8 million (31 December 2015: HK$225.2 million) was a
loan from financial institutions or restricted licence bank and HK$65 million
(31 December 2015: HK$237.5 million) was secured by pledged bank deposit.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the capital commitments of the Group was
approximately HK$78.8 million. The capital commitments were mainly related
to contracted but not yet provided for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. As at 31 December 2015, the capital commitments of the Group
were approximately HK$25.5 million.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged property, plant and equipment
with the net carrying account of approximately HK$133.0 million (2015:
HK$3,625,000) to secure the finance lease payables of approximately
HK$217,389,000 (2015: HK$3,507,000) and the bank loan of approximately
HK$61.8 million (2015: HK$225.2 million) was secured by a charge over the
Group's pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$65.0 million (2015:
HK$237.5 million).

LITIGATIONS
Details of the litigations of the Group are set out in note 41 to the financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had contingent liabilities as possible
claims arising from indemnity related to a former subsidiary of approximately
HK$7,092,000, being equivalent to RMB6,100,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$7,282,000, being equivalent to RMB6,100,000). In the opinion of
management of the Company, it is not necessary for recording any provisions
for the above contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016 as the claims are
remote as advised by the PRC legal adviser.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD - SUSPENSION
OF TRADING OF SHARES

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 1 August 2016,
19 August 2016, 10 October 2017, 24 April 2018, 31 May 2018, 29 June
2018, 31 July 2018, 14 August 2018, 12 October 2018, 30 October 2018,
3 December 2018, 25 January 2019, 31 January 2019, 29 March 2019,
30 April 2019 and 19 June 2019 relating to, among others, the update of
suspension of trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange.

1 6 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD - SUSPENSION
OF TRADING OF SHARES (cont'd)

The Company is still actively carrying out all necessary action to fulfil all
the resumption conditions before 31 July 2019, being the expiry of the
12-months period starting from the effective date of the amendments to the
delisting framework under the Listing Rules.

On 19 June 2019, the Company submitted a resumption proposal to the
Stock Exchange. The Company will use its best endeavour to fulfil all
resumption conditions and resume trading of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange.

OUTLOOK

As commuter bus leasing market (the “Market”) in the PRC with a steady
growth in recent years, the board of Directors (the “Board”) expects the
Market would be stable in the foreseeable future, specially the Market located
in Beijing and regions without mass transit alternatives.

The Group not only concerns environmental issue and industrial compliance
but also being active in bringing in an eco-friendly operation. In this
regards, new model development of new energy buses - electric vehicle
is experiencing rapid growth in replacing the existing traditional vehicles.
The Group is looking forward to invest a significant amount in such
environmental-friendly assets.

Under the challenging economic situation in the PRC, the Group currently
has committed simplifying group structures not only to enhance efficiency
on executive and administrative hierarchy but also to put existing resources
in generate profit in priority. The Group's suppliers, customers and operating
activities mainly situated in the PRC. The domestic economic changes would
affect the business of the Group. The current situation of global trading issue
may not directly affect the Group's business. However, any adverse changes
of economic in the PRC in any financially significant export/import industry,
the domino effect would finally bring the negative result to the Group in
long run, since the income from TMTC Group is sourced from various types
of institutional customers, most of them are multinational corporations or
international schools with branches or offices in Beijing.

With threshold resources to maintain operations and development, the Group
will continue to utilise all internal recourses to serve operating activities and
preserve identified stakeholder's interests.
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Directors’ Biographies

EEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ji Kaiping ("Mr. Ji"), aged 56, has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 29 August 2017 and appointed as the Chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”) with effect from 29 November 2018. He
is also an authorised representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. He completed the course of master's degree in
business administration at International Business Administration School
of the University of International Business and Economics in China from
October 2003 to November 2005. He founded TMTC in 2006 and serves
as its chairman. TMTC has become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company since August 2016 and Mr. Ji is responsible for the overall
management of the actual operation of TMTC. Mr. Ji has extensive experience
in management.

Mr. Guo Peiyuan ("Mr. Guo"), aged 48, has been appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 4 April 2018. He has almost 20 years’
experience in passenger transport management. From 1999 to 2004,
he worked in dt R EFIR{TAH B R A A as department manager, mainly
responsible for scheduling of sightseeing buses, business development
and customer relationship etc. From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Guo worked in 3t
RABIREETE AR as deputy team leader, mainly responsible for fleet
management, business development and customer relationship etc. In 2006,
he founded TMTC and currently serves as its general manager. In 2008, he
acquired It R REIKTT4L and changed its name to TMTC Travel. Currently,
Mr. Guo participants in management of TMTC Travel but does not hold any
interest in such company. TMTC and TMTC Travel has become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and a 49%-owned associate of the
Company respectively since August 2016.

1 8 National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. An Jingwen (“"Mr. An"), aged 63, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 3 December 2018. He is also a member of
each of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Company. He obtained
a Doctor's degree in Management Science and Engineering from China
University of Mining and Technology (Beijing) in 2010 and the qualification
certificate of independent director issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange in
May 2012.

Mr. An is professor of school of management of China University of Mining
& Technology (Beijing) and tutor of postgraduate candidates. Mr. An has
over 30 years’ experience in teaching and research work and has extensive
experience in the coal industry and corporate training, as well as in the areas
of standardization and quality management. Mr. An is currently a member of
each of FEBIER T X HEHERTEREMZEZE® (Coal Industry Technology
Committee of China National Coal Association) and A EI{Z (LA %Ebe 65 A
ERERITZ B2 (the Fifth Science and Technology Committee of China
National Institute of Standardization).

Mr. An has been an independent director of Pingdingshan Tianan Coal Mining
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 601666) since May 2013 and served as an independent
director of Liaoning Hongyang Energy Investment Co., Ltd. from April 2014 to
January 2016 (stock code: 600758) whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wen ("Mr. Li"), aged 63, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 4 April 2018, He is also the chairman
of the Audit Committee, and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He obtained bachelor of laws
from China University of Political Science and Law in 1983 and master of
laws from Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1986.
In 1986, he passed the Chinese National Lawyer’s Qualification examination
in Beijing and obtained legal professional qualification. From August 1986 to
December 1992, Mr. Li served as lawyer in 1 BUEREEHH 0 and practised
in law firms in Hong Kong, London and Los Angeles during the period from
June 1988 to January 1991. From December 1992 to June 1994, he founded
Beijing Zhong Lun Law Firm and served as principal. From June 1994 to
July 2007, Mr. Li founded Beijing Li Wen & Partners and served as principal.
Beijing Li Wen & Partners principally engaged in corporate, international
trading, real estate and finance. From July 2007 to January 2018, subsequent
to the change of name from Beijing Li Wen & Partners to 1t 5 {E ME LI EH
W5 Ffr, through merger with Beijing Hao Tian Law Office, Beijing Hylands Law
Firm had been established, and Mr. Li served as partner. From January 2018,
Beijing Hylands Law Firm, Beijing Anli Partners and Guangzhou Kunlun Law
Firm merged into b G XL AZMEH AT and Mr. Li became partner of 1t
TUERTIBEMEBT.
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Directors’ Biographies

EEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (cont’d)
Mr. Qiu Ke ("Mr. Qiu”), aged 48, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 1 June 2018 He is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in economics from Capital University of Economics and Business (formerly
known as Beijing College of Economics) in 1994, and obtained a Master's
degree in business administration from Renmin University of China in 2003.
He also obtained a vocational education diploma in accounting studies in
Canada in 2004.

From 1995 to 2005, Mr. Qiu served as assistant analyst in credit card
department of Beijing Branch of China Construction Bank and has in-depth
knowledge and extensive experience in financial industry and products.
Thereafter, he has involved in works of accounting in Canada and has a
profound theoretical knowledge and extensive practical experience in all
aspects of international trading, management in accounting industry, various
types of financial statements, letter of credit and telegraphic transfer.

Ms. Chen Yen Yung (“"Ms. Chen"), aged 47, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 17 April 2019. She is
also a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. She has over 20 years’ experience in the
accounting and finance field. She is a member of the CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently known
as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants). Ms. Chen studied
in The Hong Kong Polytechnic University for higher certificate in accountancy
and holds a bachelor's degree in commerce (accounting) from the Curtin
University of Technology, Western Australia. From February 1995 to February
2001, she was employed by K.L. Lee & Partners CPA Limited (subsequently
known as KLL Associates CPA Ltd. and merged with BDO Limited in 2005), a
certified practicing accountancy firm in Hong Kong, with her last position as
an assistant manager. From February 2001 to June 2002, she was employed
by B&M Consultants Limited (currently known as BMI Consultants Limited),
a business consultancy company in Hong Kong, with her last position as
director. Ms. Chen is currently the company secretary of 3T 7k Z2 @l i 4% A%
&7 BPR A A (Zhejiang Yongan Rongtong Holdings Co., Ltd*) (stock code:
8211), a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC, whose H shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. During the period from September
2018 to June 2019, she served as the independent non-executive director of
Mayer Holdings Limited (stock code: 1116), whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

*  For identification purposes only
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016:

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

A detailed review on the Group's business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and likely
future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout this annual
report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(a) review of the Company's business and financial position, a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business are shown in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual

report and note 45 to the financial statements;

(b) details of key performance indicators are shown in the sub-section
under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

headed “Liquidity and Financial Resources”

(c) the Group’s environmental policies and performance are shown in the
sub-section headed “Environmental Policies” below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
are shown in the sub-section headed “Key Relationships” below; and

(e) the Group's compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are shown
in the sub-section headed "“Compliance with Laws and Regulations”
below.

The discussions referred to in the above form part of this Directors’ Report.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2016, there are certain
updates in respect of the status of suspension of trading in Shares, further
details of which are shown in the sub-section headed “Event after the
under the section headed

“Management Discussions and Analysis” of this annual report.

Reporting Period-Suspension of Trading of Shares”

Directors’ Report
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW (cont’d)

Key Relationships

a) Employees
Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the
Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also continues
to improve and regularly review and update its policies on remuneration
and benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

b) Customers
The Group cherishes the mutually beneficial relationships with its
customers. The Group will provide the best services to its clients to
establish and consolidate the Group’s reputation in the industry.

¢) Suppliers
The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with its
suppliers as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group's
business. The Group reinforces business partnerships with its suppliers
by ongoing communication in a proactive and effective manner so as to
ensure quality and timely delivery.

Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. By speeding up the
transformation of development mode, adhering to safe, green and efficient
resources for greater quality, the Group aims to achieve green, circular and
low-carbon development.

The Group strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. In addition,
the Group actively advocated a paperless office and encouraged the
employees to develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a
green and comfortable office environment.

22 National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)
Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company has been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
therefore the Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules
including the disclosure requirements, the corporate governance provisions
set out in Appendix 14 and the “comply and explain” provisions set out in
Appendix 27 therein. Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), the
Company is required to maintain a register of substantial shareholders’ and
other persons’ interests in Shares and underlying shares of the Company and
a register of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations and is obliged to disclose price sensitive or inside information as
soon as reasonably practicable.

As the Company is incorporated in Hong Kong, it is subject to various laws
and regulations including Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), Business Registration Ordinance
(Cap. 310 of the laws of Hong Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112 of
the laws of Hong Kong) and Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the laws of
Hong Kong).

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply
with all PRC laws and applicable laws in the jurisdictions where we have
operations. Based on the information made available to the current Board,
the Board was not able to confirm whether the Company have complied with
all relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Companies Ordinance during the year ended 31 December 2016.
However, no permitted indemnity provision was in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when the
Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Based on the books and records available to the current Board, the Company
did not appear to have any contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or substantial part of the business of the
Company which were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2016.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all the then Directors or Directors who have served on the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
up to the date of this annual report are available on the website of the
Company.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 60. The Directors do
not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 144.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31 December 2016, the number of issued Shares was 6,411,770,500.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended
31 December 2016, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 36
to the financial statements.

SHARES, NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
CONVERTIBLES BONDS ISSUED

Details of the Shares, non-convertible bonds and convertible bonds issued
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

The reason of issuing the NCBs is to provide further financial resources other
than operating business and shareholders’ fund, the Company always decides
to deal with non-convertible bonds at low financial cost and professional
expenses but steady cash flow velocity.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS, DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERTIBLE
BONDS AND NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
instruments, convertible bonds and non-convertible bonds issued by the
Company are set out in notes 26, 30, 32 and 33 to the financial statements
respectively.

24
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association ("Articles”) or the laws of Hong Kong.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or its
subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities during the ended 31
December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 37(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE
As at 31 December 2016, the Company did not have any distributable
reserve.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 28.9% of the total sales and sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 22.2%.
The cost of online platform was commission occurred. Suppliers of goods
and services of car rental business which are freely available from a range of
suppliers, gasoline stations, at similar prices and which are freely available.
Therefore the disclosure of the top five suppliers are excluded.

Based on the information made available to the current Board, the Board
was not able to confirm whether the then Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company who own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued shares had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers.
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DIRECTORS =55
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: FARBEARERH =S0WT:
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman) (appointed as executive Director on wRFEE (RZZE—tFE/\AZThBEZ
29 August 2017 and appointed as (ER®) ERRTEERRN _ZT—\F
Chairman on 29 November 2018) T—RAZTthBEZERER)
Mr. Guo Peiyuan (appointed on 4 April 2018) giErEE (RZE-N\FNANBEZEE)
Mr. Li Hui (resigned on 19 September 2016) TR A (RZZE-—RENLATNLBEET)
Mr. Lo Ka Wai (resigned on 19 May 2017) EmErE (RZZE—LtFRATNHEBE)
Mr. Feng Yongming (resigned on 19 May 2017) HxAxXE (RZZE—LFRAATNHEBE)
Mr. Tian Songlin (resigned on 10 November 2017) HamEEr (RZE—LE+—ATBEE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. An Jingwen (appointed with effect from ZaXEE (ZERBZZ—N\F+ZA=H
3 December 2018) HEAER)
Mr. Yang Liu (resigned on 16 May 2017) BREE (RZZ—tFARA+BEHT)
Ms. Mou Ling (resigned on 29 November 2018) B+ (RZZE—N\F+—A=ZThH
BEE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Li Wen (appointed on 4 April 2018) FXEE (RZZE-N\FHANBEZE)
Mr. Qiu Ke (appointed on 1 June 2018) ISt (RZZE-—N\FRA—BEZHE)
Ms. Chen Yen Yung (appointed on 17 April 2019) REEzt (RZZE—AFWA+tH
BZEE)
Dr. Zhang Tianmin (appointed on 13 April 2016 and RKARELE (RZZ—X"FOA+=HEZE
resigned on 2 May 2017) MR ZE—+FFHAZHEHT)
Dr. Yang Zhi Shu (resigned on 28 April 2017) BeBEL (RZE—tFMNA=-+N\H
BEE)
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (resigned on 28 April 2017) RENEE (RZE—tFWAZ+N\H
BEE)
Mr. Wang Qun (resigned on 8 May 2017) TEREESE (RZZ—tFRANBET)
Mr. Zhou Guangguo (appointed on 2 June 2017 and BAxExEE (RZZE—tFA-BEZHE
resigned on 29 August 2017) ER—ZE—+F/\A=+TIH
BHE)
Mr. Xu Tiantian (appointed on 2 June 2017 and BARREE (RZE—EFRAZHEZEIR
resigned on 2 September 2017) RZE—tFNAZHEE)
Ms. Zhou Zhan (appointed on 2 June 2017 and ARzt (RZZ2—tF AZHEZAK
resigned on 20 October 2017) RZZE—tE+ AT HEHE)
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DIRECTORS (cont'd)

In accordance with Article 71 of the Articles, the Board may, at any time, and
from time to time, appoint any person to be a Director, either to fill a casual
vacancy or by way of addition to their number. Any Director so appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-appointment.

Mr. Ji Kaiping, Mr. Guo Peiyuan, Mr. An Jingwen, Mr. Li Wen, Mr. Qiu Ke
and Ms. Chen Yen Yung will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2019 AGM").

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Based on the information made available to the current Board, the Board was
not able to confirm whether the then Directors or their respective associates
was interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 18 to 20 to this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Based on the information made available to the current Board, the Board
was not able to confirm whether there was any transaction, arrangements or
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (“Model Code"”), were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company are set
out as below:

EERFTRETHRAERADQAREMN
BEE KRG HEROKREZ 2
BRRR

RZB-—REFTA=+—R BEERARFALE
THRABRARABREBEEE (E&RES LY
BEHPIEXVER) B BERODEESFTHACL
ARRBERIBEESF LG GROIE32GRATENE
A SRAREEHN L TR RE100 L EITAE
EETRARGZEETR ([BEF ) HER
RE R Z P 2 ERSORRIAT

RARB z i RARBERMD 21 A& 50T -

Approximately
percentage

Number of of total

Capacity/ Number of underlying number of
Name of Directors Nature of interest Shares held shares held Shares in issue
HEBRITROBH
EEnE B REMtE BERGOHAE BEHBROEE ZEHAEI T
(Note)
(K3E)
Lo Ka Wai Beneficial owner - 30,079,155 0.47%
Ea(E BEmEAA
Feng Yongming Beneficial owner - 30,079,155 0.47%
5 7K B BEmEAA
Tian Songlin Beneficial owner 470,000 - 0.01%
H R BEREBA - 30,079,155 0.47%
Wang Qun Beneficial owner - 2,506,596 0.04%
EEE EmEAA
Yang Zhi Shu Beneficial owner - 2,506,596 0.04%
152 B EmEAA

Note:  These underlying shares are derived from the interest in share options granted
by the Company under the share option scheme adopted on 14 December
2012, details of which are set out in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES" below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

28 National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

ME: ZEEEERODREARRRER-_ZT——F
Z AT B R AR BE AR A T B L A0 RS A
o ARFERN T X [ERERr &) —&e

BEXFBEEEN KT AF+-AZ+—
A BEARREFRESTRABRAAARL
FERREE GER B B% RS E0IBXVE) 1
B KBRS 15 e (8 4B o A SRR AN 2L AR 4R
BHRHE DI BI5GB E N B R MRS
HR  BIRIEET B S T M AL F R RA
R HE -



DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Based on the information made available to the current Board, the Board
was not able to confirm whether there were any rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debenture of the Company granted
to any then Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the then Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate during the year ended 31
December 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2002 Share Option Scheme

On 25 July 2002, a share option scheme was adopted by the Company
(the "2002 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the Board may grant
options to any employees, directors, shareholders, suppliers, customers of
the Group and any other person or company who has contributed or may
contribute to the development and growth of the Group.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty business
days from the offer date. The amount payable by the grantee in respect of the
acceptance of the offer is HK$10.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was expired in July 2012 after the scheme
period of the tenth anniversary of the adoption date and no further share
options can be granted under the 2002 Share Options Scheme.

Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements.
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EEEHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)
2002 Share Option Scheme (cont’'d)

Details of the movement in the share options granted under the 2002 Share

B ER S (m
—EE_FRERETE (8
BT - ERARRI R BRENAE

Option Scheme during the year are as follows: EvEEEBOT
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
as at Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at 31 price per
1 January during during during December share
Name of category/participant  Date of grant 2016 the year the year the year 2016 Exercise period option
HK$
RZB-RE RZB-X§
-A-8 +ZB=1-H BHEBRE
BH/2RERR/ 1A RHBH WARTE RERTE RERTH REREN HRTE A m;iéﬁ
BT
Employees
]
In aggregate 29 November 2007 1,478,697 - - - 1,478,697 29 November 2007 - 2.5536
28 November 2017
Ch “ERFET-AZTAE “EELEL-ACTNEE
—2—t&+-AZT/NR
Business associates
EBBEA
In aggregate 29 November 2007 8,235,470 - - - 8,235,470 29 November 2007 - 2.5536
28 November 2017
Eh T ET-AZAR ZETLEL-AZTNEE
“2—tF+-A=ZT/\B
In aggregate 27 June 2008 7,761,905 - - - 7,761,905 27 June 2008 - 2.5536
26 June 2018
aFf ZEENERAZTER ZZT/\ERAZTLAZE
ZE-\ERAZTRA
Total 17,476,072 - - - 17,476,072

3t

2012 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 14 December 2012, a new share option scheme
of the Company (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company. The 2012 Share Option Scheme, subject to earlier termination by
the Company in general meeting, will remain in force for a period of ten years

from its effective date and will expire on 13 December 2022.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)

2012 Share option scheme (cont’'d)

The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible participants for their contribution, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of the Company. The Board considers that the 2012
Share Option Scheme is in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
of the Company as a whole as it provides the Company with more flexibility
in providing incentives to those eligible participants by way of granting of
options. Pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
options to any eligible participants who has contributed or may contribute to
the development and growth of the Group or any entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest. The options may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and notified by the Board
to each grantee as being the period during which options may be exercised
and in any event, such period shall not be longer than 10 years from the date
upon which any particular option is granted in accordance with the 2012
Share Option Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty business
days from the offer date. The amount payable by the grantee in respect of the
acceptance of the offer is HK$10.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in
issue as at its adoption date or the date of approval by the shareholders in
general meeting where the limit is refreshed. At the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 1 June 2015 (the “2015 AGM"),
resolution approving the refreshment of the scheme limit and authorizing
the Directors to grant share options under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
up to the refreshed limit (i.e. 372,096,700 Shares, representing 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at the date of 2015 AGM) was passed.
As such, the total number of Shares available for issue under the 2012
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2016 was 516,025,463 Shares
(including 143,928,763 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding
share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme), representing
approximately 8.05% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the annual
report.

an ordinary
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont’d)

2012 Share option scheme (cont’'d)
Details of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements.

Details of the movement in the share options granted under the 2012 Share

BRETE m

—E-—FEREFTE (H)
R FBRE B EH RN M MAM IS -

RE-F-_FEREAERDZBRERASE

Option Scheme during the year are as follows: EvEEEBOT
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
as at Granted Cancelled Lapsed Exercised as at 31 price per
Name of category/ 1 January during during during during December share
participant Date of grant 2016 the year the year the year the year 2016 Exercise period option
HK$
R=B-X%
RZB-RE TR
-A-A =+-A SHERE
BH/$8E4H/ 8 RUBH HRTE REREH REARTHE RERXK RERTR MATHE RS ﬁ%ﬁ
B
Directors
Mr. Lo Ka Wai 3 September 2014 30,079,155 - - - - 30,079,155 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
ERfERE —Z-MEAAZR —Z-MENR=RE
“E-NENACH
Mr. Feng Yongming 3 September 2014 30,079,155 - - - - 30,079,155 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
BABEE “Z-mEAAZA “2-MENAZRZE
“E-NEAACH
Mr. Wang Qun 3 September 2014 2,506,596 - - - - 2,506,596 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
THEE “Z-mFAA=A “Z-MFNA=RZ
“E-NFENACH
Dr. Yang Zhi Shu 3 September 2014 2,506,596 - - - - 2,506,596 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
heBEL —Z-MEAAZR —Z-MENAZRE
“E-NENACH
Mr. Li Hui (Note) 3 September 2014 30,079,155 - - (30,079,155) - - - -
FRLE (W) “Z-mFAA=A
Mr. Tian Songlin 3 September 2014 30,079,155 - - - - 30,079,155 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
AL “Z-mEAAZR “Z-MFARZRZE
“E-NENACH
125,329,812 - - (30,079,155) - 95,250,657
Employees
&
In aggregate 3 September 2014 46,171,506 - - (17,546,172) - 28,625,334 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
Ch —Z-mEARZR “R-WEAAZRE
ZE-NENACH
Business Associates
EBHEA
In aggregate 3 September 2014 20,052,772 - - - - 20,052,772 3 September 2014 - 0.2274
2 September 2019
Ch “Z-mEAAZH “2-MENAZRZE
“E-NEAACH
Totil 191,554,090 - - (47,625,327) - 143,928,763
@
Note:  Mr. Li Hui resigned as executive Director on 19 September 2016. All share  [fisF: ZFBRELER-_T—XFALATILBHFHENTE
options held by him lapsed on the date of his resignation. FoHREREZEERFEANMBEBRER KB
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of every person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in the Shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Capacity and

Long position/

Directors’ Report
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Approximately
percentage of
total number of

Number of

Number of underlying

Name Nature of interest short position Shares held shares held Shares in issue
HE#T
RoE#z
“E/E28 BOREHEME #R/ %A REROGEE HERBEROYEA BREA L
(Note 1)
(HEET)
Nation Spirit Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner Long position - 933,333,333 14.56%
Nation Spirit Limited ( ff£2) EEHEBA e
Gu Baorong (Note 2) Interest of a controlled Long position - 933,333,333 14.56%
corporation
BER (H:2) R EHEE 0 ER e
Blissful Elite Limited (Note 3) Beneficial Owner Long position - 933,333,332 14.56%
Blissful Elite Limited ( ff53) EREEA HE
Ji Sen (Note 3) Interest of a controlled Long position - 933,333,332 14.56%
corporation
AR (MF3) REREE S ER e
Yang Fan Beneficial Owner Long position 810,759,648 - 12.64%
BR EHERAA HE
Upper Target Limited (Note 4) Beneficial Owner Long position 596,900,000 - 9.31%
mKER AR (H5Ed) EREBA e
Liu Zidong (Note 4) Interest of a controlled Long position 596,900,000 - 9.31%
corporation
2IF 1% (BizEa) REHEE O ER e
Beneficial Owner Long position 8,150,000 - 0.13%
EREBA e
Elite Fortune Global Limited (Note 5)  Beneficial Owner Long position 585,533,845 - 9.13%
AERRBRAF (M3S5) EREBA e
Wang Yi (Note 5) Interest of a controlled Long position 585,533,845 - 9.13%
corporation

F 5% (FitzEs)

REHEENER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (cont’d)

Notes:

The number of underlying shares of the Company held includes the maximum
number of conversion shares to be issued upon full exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the 3% coupon convertible bonds issued by the Company
to the vendors as partial settlement of the consideration pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement dated 15 January 2016. Please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 15 January 2016, 30 March 2016, 31 May 2016, 24 June
2016, 18 July 2016, 31 August 2016, 14 February 2017 and 22 February 2017
and the Company'’s circular dated 30 June 2016 for details of the acquisition.

Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Nation Spirit Limited and Gu
Baorong each filed with the Stock Exchange on 13 May 2016, these underlying
shares held by Nation Spirit Limited, which is wholly-owned by Gu Baorong.
Under Part XV of the SFO, Gu Baorong is interested in these 933,333,333
underlying shares in which Nation Spirit Limited is interested.

Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Blissful Elite Limited and Ji Sen
each filed with the Stock Exchange on 13 May 2016, these underlying shares
held by Blissful Elite Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ji Sen. Under Part XV of
the SFO, Ji Sen is interested in these 933,333,332 underlying shares in which
Blissful Elite Limited is interested.

Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Upper Target Limited and Liu
Zidong each filed with the Stock Exchange on 12 May 2016, these Shares held
by Upper Target Limited, which is wholly-owned by Liu Zidong. Under Part XV
of the SFO, Liu Zidong is interested in these 596,900,000 Shares in which Upper
Target Limited is interested.

Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Elite Fortune Global Limited and
Wang Yi each filed with the Stock Exchange on 10 March 2016, these Shares
held by Elite Fortune Global Limited, which is wholly-owned by Wang Yi. Under
Part XV of the SFO, Wang Yi is interested in these 585,533,845 Shares in which
Elite Fortune Global Limited is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person had registered

an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the

Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO.
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DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements. The Directors’ remunerations, bonuses and other compensation
are determined or recommended by the then Remuneration Committee
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and the Group's
performance and results.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Based on the information available to the current Board, during the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Group had not entered into any transactions
which constituted non-exempt connected transactions or non-exempt
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Based on the information available to the current Board, during the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Group had entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable accounting
standards but these transactions were not regarded as connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules or were exempt
from reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. Details of these related party transactions are set out
in note 43 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company, throughout
the year of 2016 and as at the date of this annual report, there is sufficient
public float by not less than 25% of the Company's issued Shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Li Wen (as the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Qiu Ke and
Ms. Chen Yen Yung, and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. An Jingwen.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, and review of the Group's financial information. The
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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EEEHRE

AUDITOR

Martin C.K. Pong & Company resigned as auditor of the Company on 27
November 2015, and ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited was appointed by the
Board as auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Martin C.K. Pong & Company on 27 November 2015.

There was no change in auditor during the preceding three years from the
date of this report. A resolution will be submitted to the 2019 AGM to re-
appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ji Kaiping
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 9 July 2019
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TRER/RRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEERER

The Board and the management are committed to maintaining and ensuring EE@NEEEATHBFIRESEEZZLET
high standards of corporate governance as good corporate governance can JA/KF - REARITIDEE QA EEDERE 2T
safeqguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. ZHRIEADLEBE - AQTICEMDEEATAE
The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate AEKFZHEEETH -BE-ZT—XRFE+_-A
governance. Based on the information available to the current Board, the =+—HIIFE EREMESS0EEER &K
Company appeared to comply with the relevant code provisions set out in the QAR B BT EE AT RIFTE 2 M8 <7 B iE S
CG Code except for the deviations explained below during the year ended 31 Tl 2 fREEIB BRI o

December 2016.

The code provisions

SFRIR X

Reasons for the non-compliance and improvement actions took or to be taken

TERFRERERABERMZUETH

A.2.1

A2.1E

A.2.5

A.2.51&

Since Mr. Yang Fan resigned as Chairman on 19 May 2015, the Company had not appointed any
individual to take up the post of the Chairman and role and functions of Chairman have been
performed by all the executive Directors collectively until the appointment of Mr. Ji Kaiping as the
Chairman on 29 November 2018.

BEBAEER_T—AFAATNAEBREEIRUR  ARBUEZEEMALTEEEFE B mEF
ZECERBECEHEEBHTESRARABET BEER SN \F+—AZtIBEELHATEERE
BRI

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not appointed a chief executive officer and
role and functions of chief executive officer have been performed by all the executive Directors
collectively. The Board believes that this arrangement enables the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives effectively and efficiently in response
to the changing environment. The Board will continuously assess whether any changes are necessary.
HEAFHRAH ARARAWESETRAR —BRTREAH ACRBER BN TESRART -
BE=gEE BTHEALTRMARERTAITRE ENERILSIERARFN BT UE
WA ENRE B2 RFETI ST EFLEMES-

The Company was not in compliance with certain code provisions as set out in the CG Code since
suspension in trading of the Shares with effect from 1 August 2016.

HRARABRONR —E—RFNA-—BREEFEE ARAARBETREERTRMHENE TFA
F3@

The Chairman has confirmed that he will take active action to improve and monitor the corporate

governance practice of the Group.
FEERR RERNERTINERERAEEAZCEERER -
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TREERKRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (cont'd) PreELEE (@)

The code provisions

<FRIME X

Reasons for the non-compliance and improvement actions took or to be taken

TERFEARERABERMZUETD

A.6.5

A.6.51%

C.1.2

C.1.21&

C.2.1and C.2.5

C.2. 1 K% C.2.50%

Based on the information available, the current Board are not able to confirm whether the Company
had updated all the then Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices, and whether the then Directors had participated
in any training for the year ended 31 December 2016.
%BA—ME BH EREESREREREE T RET A=+ —HILFEARFARE THKM
ERMEEFENARLTRAILEMEREERECENMER UBREREINMNBREIER
ﬂm%ﬁé—? ARERHESEAE2EEMIEI -

Based on the information available, the current Board are not able to confirm whether the Company
had provided a regular monthly update to the members of the then Board during the year ended 31
December 2016.

HRAESEN RIEEQ@REER REZE -2 —RE+-A=+—HBLFEAR BRER
NEEEXRETARHENEN -

R

The Company did not conduct an annual review on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, and the need for an internal audit function for the year ended
31 December 2016.

RARWAEAEBHE_T—A"FT_A=ZT—HLFERREER RN EH RFH A RIEAR
RETENNEZREETFESRMN-

Given most of the current Directors become members of the Board since 2018, the Board is not in a
position to review and confirm the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, and the need for an internal audit function for the year ended 31 December 2016.
ERABOENESTA T \FRNAESFENE BT AUAEEEBEE_Z—R"ETHA
ST -HIEFERBEERABEHNEANEREARRSEZTERNMEZBEETENRER -

E.1.2 Based on the information available to the current Board, Mr. Wang Qun, the then chairman of the
Nomination Committee, did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June
2016.

E.1.21% NERESGIEGEN IHEAEFRAREZESERMNER TELHBEAQRTANR-ZE—RERX
AZTABRTHRFAFRE -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS E%ﬁ

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's strategic planning and EH& /\i§*€§$‘ilﬁ’3 RIS EI R ERE - WHlE

development, and for determining the objectives, strategic and policies of the ZAEBEMBE KB EHIT FABZEREEEER
Group while delegating day-to-day operations of the Group to management.  ZN& & #) B #4458 o o - K§$AEXETJJ’@H}1£
Besides, each member of the Board is expected to make a full and active HEAEFSEHR ITHRREESTEFTALAA
contribution to the Board's affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best ~ RERBEEARER -

interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently comprises six
members including, Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman) and Mr. Guo Peiyuan as
executive Directors, Mr. An Jingwen as non-executive Director and Mr. Li
Wen, Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen Yung as independent non-executive
Directors. One of the three independent non-executive Directors possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirement of the Listing Rules. Details of
their respective experiences and qualifications are included in the “Directors’
Biographies” section of this annual report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 28 March 2014 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company's strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will also
take into consideration its own business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and adopt
the above measurements when it reviewed the composition of the Board.
After assessing the suitability of the Directors’ skills and experience to the
Company’s business, the Nomination Committee considered that the existing
Board were suitably qualified with professional backgrounds and/or equipped
with extensive expertise for the purposes of providing direction to and
oversight of the Group’s strategic and business in achieving its objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The independent non-executive Directors should ensure the Board accounts
for the interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered in
an objective manner. However, due to the limitation of incomplete books
and records, the current Board is unable to ascertain whether any annual
confirmations of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
were made by each of the then independent non-executive Directors to the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Based on the information available, the current Board are not able to confirm
whether there was any financial, business, family relationship among the
members of the then Board, or whether all of them are free to exercise their
individual judgement.
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DIRECTORS’' CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in appropriate continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses to ensure that they are fully aware of
the responsibilities and obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

As disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Governance Practices” above,
based on the information available, the current Board are not able to confirm
whether the Company had updated all the then directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices, and whether the then
directors had participated in any training for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The Company will continuously update Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

MEETINGS

Based on the information available to the current Board, during the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Board held 14 meetings and 3 general
meetings, being the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2016 and the
general meetings held on 25 April 2016 and 18 July 2016 respectively. The
Board also passed resolutions by way of written resolutions.

The attendance record of each Directors is set out in the table on page 46 of
this annual report.

The company secretary of the Company assists the chairman of each meeting
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The company secretary of the Company also keeps
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to all the Directors
for inspection. Draft of Board minutes are circulated to all Directors for their
comments and approved as soon as practicable after the Board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can
ask for further information or retain independent professional advisors if
necessary. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and service of
the company secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the
Directors with board papers and related materials and ensuring that board
procedures are followed.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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BOARD MEETINGS

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder
of the Company or Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolutions. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest should present at meeting
dealing with conflict issues. Board committees of the Company, including
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, all follow the applicable practices and procedures used in Board
meetings for committee meetings.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Since Mr. Yang Fan resigned as Chairman on 19 May 2015,
the Company had not appointed any individual to take up the post of the
Chairman and role and functions of Chairman have been performed by all the
executive Directors collectively until the appointment of Mr. Ji Kaiping as the
Chairman on 29 November 2018. Up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has not appointed a chief executive officer and role and functions
of chief executive officer have been performed by all the executive Directors
collectively. The Board believes that this arrangement enables the Company
to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company's
objectives effectively and efficiently in response to the changing environment.
The Board will continuously assess whether any changes are necessary.

DIRECTORS’' TERM OF APPOINTMENTS AND
RE-ELECTION

In accordance with Article 72(1) of the Articles, the Directors shall be elected
or replaced by the Company in general meeting and shall serve a term of
office of 3 years. A Director may serve consecutive terms if re-elected by the
Company in general meeting upon the expiration of his term. Article 71 of
the Articles provides that Directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-
appointment.
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TREERKRE

DIRECTORS’' TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND

RE-ELECTION (cont’d)

The term of appointment of the then non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, who served as non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors during the year ended 31 December

2016, are set out below:

Name of the then Director

BExEH

EETHEREREMT @

HEZZ—XF+-_A=+—"HILEFE ERKEF
HITEERBYFRTEENIERNTEET RBEY
FERITEENEMERIIWT

Term of appointment

5

Ms. Mou Ling (the non-executive Director)

FRLZLT (FRTESR)

Mr. Yang Liu (the non-executive Director)

BELE (FRTESR)

Mr. Wang Qun (the independent
non-executive Director)

EREE CBUIFRTES)

Dr. Yang Zhi Shu (the independent
non-executive Director)

HeBEL CBLIFNTES)

Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson (the independent
non-executive Director)

RGN RE OB IFMITESR)

Dr. Zhang Tianmin (the independent
non-executive Director)

RARBE BLIFRTESR)

Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions

in the Articles.

a term of three years commencing from 12 December 2013, subject to termination by
either party by serving prior notice to the other party no less than two months’ notice
in writing

M-Z—=Fft+_At+t_PREP=F ThaEM—FBBAS —HFELTLREE
A E @ AR AR A AR L

an initial term of three years commencing from 17 July 2015, subject to termination
by either party by serving prior notice to the other party no less than two months’
notice in writing

H-Z-AFtATHHEFVRER=F JhREM—FRBRS —FEHTIR
R E A &Y E B AR AT A M AR Ak

a term of three years commencing from 26 September 2013, subject to termination
by either party by serving prior notice to the other party no less than two months’
notice in writing

TE-=FAASHRRIESR=F ThaEMT-ARBERS - EH T RME
A E AR AR A AR L

a term of three years commencing from 12 December 2013, subject to termination by
either party by serving prior notice to the other party no less than two months’ notice
in writing

HZZE—=F+-ATZHEHAVBRER=F fJaETA—FRBRAS —HELT
SRRE R B E B AIRATBA AL

an initial term of three years commencing from 16 March 2015, subject to
termination by either party by serving prior notice to the other party no less than two
months’ notice in writing

M- -—HF=A+RNARFAEPR=F ThaEM—FBBAS —HFELTDREE
AMEREEBA T ALIE

an initial term of one year commencing on 13 April 2016, subject to termination by
either party by serving prior notice to the other party no less than two months’ notice
in writing

H-ZE-R"EFOAT=ZHEVFER—F JREA—FRBRS —FEEHTIR®
BAKELEEEEMTIALIE

FEZEOXAMEIZAR A& E SR E X
FTALIR
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by the Directors.

Based on the information made available to the current Board, the Board was
not able to confirm whether all the then Directors have complied with, or
whether there has been any non-compliance with, the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The current Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price sensitive
announcements, inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 55 to 59.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 December 2005 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code which are
available on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
formulation of the remuneration policy, review and recommending to the
Board the annual remuneration policy of the Directors and members of senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach made
under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a year
and as and when required. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Qiu Ke (as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Wen and Ms. Chen Yen
Yung and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. An Jingwen.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (cont'd)

Based on the information available to the current Board, during the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings
to, among other matters, discuss and review of existing remuneration
policy and structure of the management of the Company and proposed
the remuneration proposal for independent non-executive Directors, and to
consider and recommend to the Board the remuneration package for the
proposed independent non-executive Director.

The attendance record of each members of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the table on page 46 of this annual report.

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016, by band is set out below:

FHEEE @)
ERENESEUESEAN RBE-S— A&
+-A=+-BUHEE FHEESSLTTRAR
B (EREE) SR RENAAREREREH
MBS REE W ABTERTESREEMIE
BOARREBYERGTEEZ FHHBZELA
EEQREES-

FHEZESENENHFECHERNAFIRE6R
2RI

BE-_Z-—RF+-RA=+—HBUIEFEARASR
ERE (REES)ZFH RHFMEESITWT

Number of

Remuneration Band individuals
e E A"
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 6
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7L 22,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7L 23,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7L 24,000,000/ 7T 1

Further details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2016 are disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements contained
in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 7 July 2008 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code which are available on
the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited to
skills, experience and background, geographical and industry experience,
ethnicity, gender, knowledge and length of service) of the Board; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; and to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; and to review the Board Diversity Policy and the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (cont’d)

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year
and as and when required. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director, namely Ji Kaiping (as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li
Wen, Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen Yung.

Based on the information available to the current Board, during the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings
to, among other matters, discuss and review of Board structure, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, re-election of Directors
and nomination of independent non-executive Directors to the Board and
make recommendation on new independent non-executive Director candidate
for the Board's approval.

The attendance record of each members of the Nomination Committee is set
out in the table on page 46 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has had the Audit Committee since 2004 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code which are available on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. It is responsible
for reviewing the Group’s financial reporting, risk management, internal
controls and making recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li
Wen (as the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen

Yung and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. An Jingwen.

Based on the information available to the current Board, during the year
ended 31 December 2016, 1 Audit Committee meeting was held, at which
the members of the Audit Committee, among other matters, reviewed the
Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control and risk management
systems, and recommended the re-appointment of the external auditors.

TEERRE

REZEE W)
RAEZEGRSFEZLRIT K TREZERE
T REZESENH AR TESLRATRE
(BRAZEQER) R -_RBIUIIENTESNE
XohE R EEREHREL TAK -

ERENEFEUERSEN REBEEC T-Ti
T A=+ —HILEFE REZEGRITTMAE
A (EPail) dmhkBHEFaRE - ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ
FRITEENBE UM BEEENNEETSRES
SIEMITEE UWHIMBIERITESIREARSL
BEEOUfEFSHE-

BERENHFECHEBNAFIRE6R
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TEERRE
ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND THE BOARD HEEEEREEZESSEUER
COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS BEAE

The attendance records of the Directors to the Board meetings and Board #HZE-—ZE—NF+_-_A=-+—HIFE EEHE
committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set HTZEe@xEMNE=LZE e EHdyWT:
out below:

Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings
¥NzEg RE%ZE% ENZEE

34 -f Lf L:f SO
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Lo Ka Wai EER%HE 14/14 22 22 - 23
Mr. Feng Yongming BB E 1314 - - - 13
Mr. Li Hui (Note 1) FREA (51 9/10 - - - 03

(resigned on 19 September 2016) (RZB-~%F
NATNBEE)
Mr. Tian Songlin BRHEE 14/14 - - - 03
Non-Executive Directors FUTES
Ms. Mou Ling BRIt 12114 - - - 33
Mr. Yang Liu or ik 8/14 - - - 23
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Wang Qun THEE 114 22 2 1n 03
Dr. Yang Zhi Shu BEEL 1314 - - i 03
Mr. Lai Ho Man, Dickson RENSEE 1414 2 0 1n 33
Dr. Zhang Tianmin (Note 2) RRREL (H52) 6/9 - - - 02
(appointed on 13 April 2016) (RZE-1%E
NA+=HEZE)

Notes: B sE -

1. Mr. Li Hui resigned on 19 September 2016. His attendance above were stated by

FREEAR-Z-REAATARERE LR H

reference to the number of Board meetings and general meetings held during his FRE /DS EEIRBEBTHESSHELBERA
tenure. IREI R

2. Dr. Zhang Tianmin was appointed on 13 April 2016. His attendance above were 2. EFEXEE+R -_"T—NENA+=-REST Lt

stated by reference to the number of Board meetings and general meetings held JHERENZ2EZAFTEBBERTHNESS S
during his tenure. RIRR KRG IREFIR -
46 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration paid/payable to
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, is set out below:

TEERRE

B BB B <&
BE-T-AFt-A=T-ALFE EH/E
AR R LA E 2 R FHAERA

WS T
Fee paid/
payable
Bt E A
HK$
o
Audit services: ERR

Audit of the financial statements FERMBHRE 980,000

Non-audit services: FEXBR
Acquisition of wholly owned subsidiary project Wiz EEEMBE A ARIEE 380,000
Interim report engagement FHIREZE 180,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Company and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

S A=Y 1
S

NEERREONBRESEETTIICEE

SR

(a)

HET R AR BB EERRERER
R REREERARASREEENEIL
FEEXRR:

B RERARREETERREERAESA
R S H M

HE A REEEARARRREERESH
BEARERFM (WA &

AR AT EEHTAHEREN L
ERMENBEEN LR -
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TRER/RE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are designed to
managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and management
will provide a confirmation to the Audit Committee and the Board on the
effectiveness of these systems.

However, given most of the current Directors become members of the
Board since 2018, the Board is not in a position to review and confirm the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for the long-
term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk management
structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the structure are
summarized below:

2 B T e o AR S 4
ESeaEAREERABEERSR

EFEYRABEAERRBRERRAIMEEFRR A
BEEZERL ABERELSFEHNAEEZ
ERGHMENMN - EHNEESIERAERES
BREVE EERARERN AEENRERERLER
NEEERREEE R - IR REETEE
BREMNER BERSHERERRRSIE LR
BIEMIEBE AR -

ExeCHERRERRAMEZNRE (HAH
BB )ERERZES MEEREBECRAERE
BehEarxgBARSTRRNBRIE-

AW ERARBOREEEA T \FREURE
EENE EFQEEUAKEBRE_T—XF
TZTA=T-BLEFERRERERAMZE R4
YA R 1T B M AR

EREEAGNEERH

ARARA TENRRERYEERATFHESR
RIFEZE-AFENERERRBLRBEANZA
ENT2RAFRMNT

Board Audit Management Risk
NN # Committee # e # Owners
e EREER R BB EA
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TRER/RRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd) FE[EEEF AIPEIE (&)

Main Features of the Risk Management System (cont’d) RREERANEERSE (&)

Role Major Responsibilities

AE FTERE

Board determines the business strategies and objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;

EEE EEAEE7EBRBEAR AR IECASEAEXRRBARMBEEEMANARIEE KIEE:

Audit Committee

B
N
vt
1o
8

\
A

oversees management in the design, implement and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems;
EEEEEYHEREE RN EERSGMNR Btk

o

oversees the Group's risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis and ensures
the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems;

FHEEEASENEREEMADEZRGELBRARFRBILEFAELALOEREIE RAEE

reviews the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems at least annually,
and such review should cover all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls;

ELBFE-RBANASEEREEIADBEZZREN BRI LZERNEBEEMEEAEE B

BogeakaREE:

reviews the emerging risks of the Group annually, and the risk management and the internal controls in
place to address those risks;
BEENAKREFELANAR WEERRERE R ADEZBRRZ SRR

discusses the risk management and internal control systems with management of the Group to ensure
that the management of the Group has performed its duty to have an effective systems. The discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group's accounting and financial reporting function and to rectify any weaknesses that
may be revealed from time to time;

HAKBEREENREAREERABETRS UBRASEEEECOBITHEBREZYEUNRASS -BH
AREREARENGH R ERRBAEAFTEACER BEIERLER BIREREHHEERS
B+ A} IE BT AR B IR A (E e 557

considers major investigation findings on risk management and internal control matters as delegated by
the Board or on its own initiative and the Group’s management'’s response to these findings;
BEEENZRXTH ZREHARREENADEXAEZENEERASARUREAEEEREHZS
HRZEE:
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TREERKRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’d)
Main Features of the Risk Management System (cont’d)

B EERAIBEEE (@)
BREBERGNTESEY (&)

Role Major Responsibilities

A TERE

Management — designs, implements and ongoing assesses the Group’s risk management and internal control systems;
ERE — R EBRFEFEAEENRREE R AIMEERR:

—  gives prompt responses to, and follow up the findings on risk management and internal control matters
as delegated by the Board, on Audit Committee’s initiative or raised by the external risk management
and internal control review advisor(s);

- EEFENER BEXZEFPIIINMAREERANIEERIBERRL HRBREERABELTS
H AR K [ I R

—  provides confirmation to the Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems;

- MEEREZZESRAAREERAIMEIERTHAE R

Risk Owners — ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is managed appropriately; and

REa &

Main Features of the

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable

EHRBERRARSIEEER &

responsible for, or oversight of, activities to manage each identified risk.
ERNEEEERCHAARNES-

RPEZRGNETERH
ARFEEMAMEIERS  ZEREAEELEE
RAEMEERURRY UBRENERTAER
ERERNBIR ZAEROBEROT

Internal Control System

laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follow:

Control Environment

BEIEIRIR

Risk Assessment

[\ Bz 5 f

Control Activities

D)

Information and
Communication

B BB

Monitoring

g

50

a set of standards, processes and structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal control across
the Group.
—ERETASEEAMEIERMALENED 2T REE-

a dynamic and iterative process for identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's objectives,
forming a basis for determining how risks should be managed.
—EABEZREIRIE  AHR RO ERAEE B R ER - T2 T 0 E 52 & b 604K o

actions established by policies and procedures to help ensure that management directives to mitigate
risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

RBBRRENIEFREITY  NBERRITEEEREEENKBENRBRMELONET -

internal and external communication to provide the Group with the information needed to carry out
day-to-day controls.
WAL INED BB AR AR EE R ET A BEEMBHNER -

ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether each components of internal control is present
and functioning.
FERENFIENEAABEENETLEEEFHELEFLES-
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’'d)
Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant Risks
Identification -

TEERRE

EREERAIPEE @)
BACFEREEEAERNER

identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

consider the risk responses, ensure effective communication with the Board in respect of the risks and

Ei%ll - #HARRBREEA EHARMUEFEERERNAER-
Evaluation - analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.
BRG — DRARNTEERFZEIBEFGERRAS -
Management -
on-going monitor the residual risks.
g2 — EZERAREYH HEREEESCARARETEREBLGEEER

Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to Resolve
Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report will be submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, will perform a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including, but not limited
to, (i) the changes, in the nature and extent of significant risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the external
environment, (ii) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control systems, (iii) the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring results to the Audit Committee and the Board
which enables them to assess control of the Company and the effectiveness
of risk management, (iv) significant control failings or weaknesses that have
been identified, and (v) the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance. The scope of such review
will cover the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
against internal control of the Group.

Given most of the current Directors become members of the Board since
2018, the Board is not in a position to review and confirm the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

UER [ B
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TREERKRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd)
Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of the relevant
obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which
include:

— access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

— transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

—  prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.

— code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any reference
to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to minimize
possibilities of unintentional leakage.

— trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with reasonable care.

- confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

—  officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. As disclosed in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Practices” above, given most of
the current Directors become members of the Board since 2018, the Board is
not in a position to review the need for an internal audit function for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Lam Man Kit served as the
company secretary of the Company. However, training records of Mr. Lam
Man Kit for the year ended 31 December 2016 are not available to the
current Board.

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS TO CONVENE A
GENERAL MEETING AND PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 48 of the Articles, general meetings of the Company shall
be convened by the Board on the requisition of members pursuant to the
provisions of the statutes. Pursuant to sub-section 567(1) of the Companies
Ordinance, directors required under section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
to call a general meeting must call a meeting within 21 days after the date
on which they become subject to the requirement. A general meeting called
under sub-section 567(1) of the Companies Ordinance must be held on a date
not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders can submit a written requisition or in electronic form to move a
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company, or who are no less
than 50 shareholders, pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance.
The requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by a statement with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution of the business to
be dealt with at the general meeting of the Company. It must also be signed
by all requisitionists for the attention of the Company not less than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requisition relate.
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EEERBME

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information to
its shareholders in a timely manner. Annual and interim reports offer
comprehensive operational and financial performance information to its
shareholders and the annual general meeting of the Company provides
a forum for shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the annual general meeting of the Company as an
important event and all Directors, senior management and external auditors
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to
address shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given
a minimum of 20 clear business days’ notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company supports the CG
Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’ participation. The Company has
also complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under the
Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles is available at the Company’s website www.nur.com.hk and the
Stock Exchange’s website. No changes have been made to the Articles during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the Company by
mail at the Company’s registered office at Unit 2806, 28th Floor, Wu Chung
House, 213 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications to the Board
and/or relevant Board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the shareholders’ questions.

PROCEDURES FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS FOR
ELECTION

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as a Director are available and accessible on the Company’s website
at www.nur.com.hk.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NATIONAL UNITED RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEXRBHEERZERERD T

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of National
United Resources Holdings Limited (the
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 143, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of

“Company”) and its subsidiaries

comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in

compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

1. Certain opening balances and corresponding figures
As explained in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015, which forms the basis for the corresponding figures
presented in the current year’s consolidated financial statements were
restated. There were no satisfactory audit procedures for us to ascertain
the accuracy and appropriateness of these restatements, thus the related
opening balances and corresponding figures shown in the current
year consolidated financial statements. In addition, we have not been
provided with sufficient appropriate audit evidence whether the loss
of approximately HK$68,261,000 restated during the year ended 31
December 2015 should be recorded in 2015 or 2016.
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B ZBERE

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (cont’d)
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (cont’d)

2.

N ES SAC )
THERERZEE (#)

Annual Report 2016

Limited accounting books and records of two subsidiaries - First 2. WMEKBLrGZzEREF;RERLH -AILAE
Concept Industrial Group Limited and iFrontier LLC XEFHER A T RiFrontier LLC
Due to the insufficiency of supporting documentation and explanations B AR LEEXEB AR AR A RiFrontier
for accounting books and records in respect of the First Concept LLCHE-_ZE—X"F+_A=+—HILFEZ
Industrial Group Limited and iFrontier LLC for the years ended 31 SHERB LA I EFRANELRESARE &
December 2016, we were unable to carry out audit procedures to EREHTTERREFUASETEEERTIEHE
satisfy ourselves as to whether the following income and expenses for —E-RFE+ A=+ —HIEFEZWAR
the years ended 31 December 2016 and the assets and liabilities as at FAXER_ZZE-—R"FEF+A=+—HZEE
31 December 2016, and the segment information and other related FEE RSB EREEME S£EAEH
disclosure notes in relation to the Group, as included in the consolidated Z B E M AT ( AR TE
financial statements of the Group, have been accurately recorded and EIRECORNESBRREELERELAA
properly accounted for in the consolidated financial statements: R
For the
year ended
31 December
2016
BE-ZT—-XKF
+=ZBA=+—H
LFE
HK$’000
FET
Income and expenses: WARBEX:
Other income H A 1,089
Administrative expenses THAX (23,517)
Finance cost A& B AN (12)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FRAFBEREZABREAHE (22,440)
As at
31 December
2016
R=ZT—XKEF
+=ZA=+—H
HK$’000
FHET
Assets and liabilities: EERAE:
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR FOR - 1R K H AL W KIA 634
Bank and cash balances RITRREET 37,474
Trade payables BB SR (38,266)
Other payables and accruals H R RIB R ERHE A (39,724)
Net liabilities BEFE (39,882)
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (cont’d)
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (cont’d)

3.

Nature of prepayments

We were unable to obtain independent confirmations or other
corroborative evidence about the nature of prepayments paid and
impaired to the amount of HK$144,000,000 during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Impairment losses on interests in associates

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves, in relation
to the accuracy of the impairment losses on interests in associates
of approximately HK$208,944,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016. Furthermore, no sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy
ourselves as to the classification and amount of the remaining interests in
associates as at 31 December 2016.

Loss on deconsolidation of the subsidiaries

As explained in notes 2 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements,
certain subsidiaries of the Company have been deconsolidated from the
Group since 1 January 2016. No sufficient evidence has been provided
to satisfy ourselves as to whether the Company had lost control of
the aforesaid subsidiaries on 1 January 2016. Accordingly we were
unable to satisfy ourselves as to the loss on deconsolidation of the
subsidiaries and the impairment on investment costs and amounts due
from deconsolidated subsidiaries of approximately HK$238,905,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016 as disclosed in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves, in relation
to the existence, rights and obligations and valuation of the borrowings
of approximately HK$34,881,000 as at 31 December 2016.

Discontinued Operations

The Group did not present certain deconsolidated subsidiaries’
operations as discontinued operations which is not in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5 “ Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
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B BET RS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (cont’d)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (cont’d)

8. Related party transactions and balances
No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves as to
the existence and completeness of the disclosures of the related party
transactions for the years ended 31 December 2015 and the balances
as at those dates as required by Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24
(Revised) “Related Party Disclosures”.

9. Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$1,442,449,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at 31
December 2016 the Group has net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately HK$223,134,000 and HK$454,698,000 respectively.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis on the assumption that the proposed
restructuring of the Company will be successfully completed, and that,
following the restructuring, the Group will continue to meet in full
its financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that
would result from a failure to complete the restructuring. We consider
that the disclosures are adequate. However, in view of the extent of the
uncertainty relating to the completion of the restructuring, we disclaim
our opinion in respect of the material uncertainty relating to the going
concern basis.

Any adjustments to the figures as described from points 1 to 8 above might
have a significant consequential effect on the Group's results and cash flows
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 and the financial positions
of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

REPORT ON OTHER MATTERS UNDER SECTIONS
407(2) AND 407(3) OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report:

® we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting records had
been kept; and

e we have not obtained all the information and explanations that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary and material for the
purpose of the audit.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614
Hong Kong, 9 July 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

Notes 2016 2015
B &t —E—XE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ERT FHET
(Restated)
(g&E51)
Revenue Y &= 9 51,737 77,818
Cost of sales B4 E KA (32,482) (52,966)
Gross profit E5 19,255 24,852
Other income H A A 10 34,732 33,737
Other loss HEmEsiE 3 - (65,574)
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESHE (4,312) (6,120)
Administrative and other operating THREMEERS
expenses (106,236) (91,998)
Loss from operations rEEE (56,561) (105,103)
Finance cost A& AR 11 (37.604) (23,597)
Fair value gain of derivative instruments $74 T B 2 A F AU 30 213,319 33,573
Provision of prepayment TE RIBEREAE (233,679) (40,000)
Impairment losses on property, Y- BB RFEREEE
plant and equipment 18 (25,312) -
Impairment losses on goodwill EEBEFIE 19 (791,122) -
Impairment losses on intangible assets /2 & E (B 55 18 20 (77,006) -
Impairment losses on trade receivables — FEWE 5 FUREE B (770) -
Impairment losses on interests in REERR 2w 2 REEE
associates (208,944) -
Loss on deconsolidation of subsidiaries — BUE#r& ABRKIE AR 2 E1E 12 (238,905) -
Share of profits and losses of associates & 1f B ‘& A 5% FI } &5 18 - 3,728
Loss before tax MR AT ES B (1,456,584) (131,399)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiERiEe, (FX) 13 14,135 (1,968)
Loss for the year FREEB 14 (1,442,449) (133,367)
Attributable to: LT ALEAS:
Owners of the Company /NI Z =N (1,438,382) (132,674)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 2 (4,067) (693)
(1,442,449) (133,367)
Loss per share attributable to EATBEEAEEERER (restated)
owners of the Company 16 (gE51)
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (FRBW) (23.12) (2.78)
Diluted (HK cents per share) s (B (23.12) (2.78)
60 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

Notes 2016 2015
Lig=3 —E-XF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(Restated)
(r2&E5)
Loss for the year FRER 14 (1,442,449) (133,367)
Other comprehensive loss: Hih2HEERE !
Items that may be reclassified A EF D2 Em 2 HE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of — HBEGINEBEHEE Z
foreign operations fEHERE 1,778 (1,462)
Exchange differences on translation of — HBE L RN AIFEE 2
associates fEHERE - (5,690)
Exchange differences reclassified to BUBAR A ABRH B A 7
profit or loss on deconsolidation of BFOBRERRZ
subsidiaries fEHERE 4,684 -
Exchange differences reclassified PENBARIREN S EE
to profit or loss on disposal of B EN ZEE
subsidiaries - (3,566)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEAEEERE (1,435,987) (144,085)
Total comprehensive loss RTATEEER
for the year attributable to: PHBBRARE:
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZF =N (1,431,615) (142,289)
Non-controlling interests e AR A 2 (4,372) (1,796)
(1.435,987) (144,085)

BRBAERERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

As at 31 December 2016 A= — X E+-F=+—H

Notes 2016 2015
Bt —T—RF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(restated)
(g&E51)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB KFEE 18 165,341 61,328
Goodwill EES 19 - 326,342
Intangible assets mEAE 20 - 178,093
Club membership L - 150
Interests in associates B E RN B2 s 22 - 208,944
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHENE BERSBEZIES
plant and equipment - 2,629
165,341 777,486
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 5E 23 - 5,325
Trade receivables FEWE 5K 24 404 20,351
Bonds receivable JE W (& 75 - 75,780
Prepayments, deposits and other FANRIE - Re Rk
receivables Ho A & Y R IE 25 188,037 580,557
Financial assets at fair value through BRATFEFAERZEHEE
profit or loss 26 2,325 2,387
Pledged bank deposits B IFRITIF N 27 65,000 237,478
Bank and cash balances WITRBEET 27 47,457 183,409
303,223 1,105,287
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables ERTE S 28 44,949 73,256
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNRIBERESER 29 150,150 56,966
Derivative instruments PTETHE 30 10,000 -
Borrowings BE 31 217,455 251,773
Convertible bonds TR ES 32 24,652 -
Non-convertible bonds Ta R EH 33 10,963 243,959
Finance lease payables JE T b & ERRIE 34 43,692 980
Tax payable FET R TE 24,496 28,172
526,357 655,106
Net current (liabilities)/assets HE(&E) EEFRE (223,134) 450,181
Total assets less current BREERRBAE
liabilities (57,793) 1,227,667
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

As at 31 December 2016 R =—Z— X FE+-A=+—H

Notes 2016 2015
B &t —E-RE —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ERT FAT
(restated)
(g=E751)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Derivative instruments PTETE 30 - 223,319
Convertible bonds AR (E 5 32 133,316 62,889
Non-convertible bonds TARERES 33 89,892 10,795
Finance lease payables FER AR ERIE 34 173,697 2,527
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEEE 35 - 43,126
396,905 342,656
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) "BEFE (454,698) 885,011
Capital and reserves BRK#E
Share capital RN 36 3,178,754 3,080,114
Reserves R (3,640,400) (2,231,088)
Equity attributable to owners of the RRRHER ANEGER
Company (461,646) 849,026
Non-controlling interests JEVE AR = 6,948 35,985
TOTAL EQUITY miER (454,698) 885,011
Approved by: Ji Kaiping Guo Peiyuan
ME R LEF BT IR
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EXNGE DN 1
Equity
component Foreign
Share-based of currency Non-
Share payment  convertible translation Accumulated controlling
capital reserve bonds reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
MR B
EffiRe URREHZ
BA& 1] BEBS  HEREHRE RiEE E3 FERER EY 34
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz FHL Ttz FHT Fitx Ttz FHT Fitn
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-R4%—-A—8 2,321,311 46,373 948 4,040 (2,174,080) 198,592 1,031 199,623
Loss for the year (retstated) FRER (LEF]) - - - - (132,674) (132,674) (693) (133,367)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FAEMZAEE - - - (9,615) - (9,615) (1,103) (10,718)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRTEBREE (FET)

(restated) - - - (9,615) (132,674) (142,289) (1,796) (144,085)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAR - - - - - - 31,984 31,984
Capital injection from non-controlling WRARAFERERTE

interests of subsidiaries - - - - - - 4,766 4,766
Lapsed of share options BIREAR - (4,155) - - 4,155 - - -
Shares issued upon exercise of TR BRESEITRG

share options 9,485 (2,970) - - - 6,515 - 6,515
Shares issued pursuant to the open offer REDREEETRN 476,401 - - - - 476,401 - 476,401
Equity component of convertible bonds RREF BT S - - 68,090 - - 68,090 - 68,090
Conversion of convertible bonds GRmaRES 115,717 - (31,200) - - 84,517 - 84,517
Shares subscription R 17 R EE 157,200 - - - - 157,200 - 157,200
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE-RFT-A=T-BR

1 January 2016 (restated) NE—A—B (E7) 3,080,114 39,248 37,838 (5,575) (2,302,599) 849,026 35,985 885,011
Loss for the year FERER - - - - (1,438,382) (1,438,382) (4,067) (1,442,449)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZALN/ (FE)

for the year - - - 6,767 - 6,767 (305) 6,462
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FR2ERN/ (B]B)EE

for the year - - - 6,767 (1,438,382) (1,431,615) (4,372) (1,435,987)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries REGAARHRAR - - - - - - (24,665) (24,665)
Conversion of convertible bonds dRaaRES 16,800 - (7,211) - - 9,529 - 9,529
Equity component of convertible bonds TARES  REHH - - 29,574 - - 29,574 - 29,574
Issue of shares Bk 81,840 - - - - 81,840 - 81,840
Lapsed of share options BRI R - (4,937) - - 4,937 - - -
At 31 December 2016 R-Z-"F+-A=+-H 3,178,754 34,311 60,141 1,192 (3,736,044) (461,646) 6,948 (454,698)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éiﬁﬁﬁéi

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

Note 2016 2015
HtiF —E-ARF —T—AF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
(restated)
(&%)
Cash flows from operating REEBZRERE
activities
Loss before tax B 5 A B 1B (1,456,584) (131,399)
Adjustments for: FLTFEEFERE:
Share of profits and losses of FEMREEE N A2 m AN R EE
associates - (3,728)
Depreciation e 17,795 9,471
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERH 4,312 6,120
Fair value gain of derivative PMTAETEATEZ K&
instruments (213,319) (33,573)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEMB AR W= - (11,356)
Gain on disposal of an associate HERE AR 2 W= - (1,020)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEEAFESABTZ
fair value through profit or loss A E WS (24,078) (12,706)
Provision of prepayment AR RIB R 233,679 40,000
Loss on disposal of club membership HEgMEECEIE 100 -
Impairment losses on property, plant W -BEREHEZ
and equipment REEE 25,312 -
Impairment losses on goodwill ez REEE 791,122 -
Impairment losses on intangible assets mEEEZRERR 77,006 -
Impairment losses on trade KB SR 2 REEE
receivables 770 -
Impairment losses on interests in REERRIZ R
associates REEE 208,944 -
Impairment on investment costs in the BUB4RE ARMBARIRE
deconsolidated subsidiaries PR 2 RME 70,728 -
Impairment on due from the FEWEBUEAR & ABRKE AR
deconsolidated subsidiaries FIBZRE 16,038 -
Loss on deconsolidation of BUBER A ABRNBAREE
subsidiaries ZE1E 152,139 -
Interest income FEHA (5,070) (6,720)
Interest expenses M EBHEZ 35,757 23,524
Operating cash flows before working BEBEBESEFAIZ
capital changes KERERE (65,349) (121,387)
Change in inventories FEEE - (5,325)
Change in trade receivables FEUE 5 k2 14,827 12,405
Change in prepayments, deposits and ERFE Re Rk
other receivables H e R TE # (20,264) (100,504)
Net proceeds from disposal of HERAFEFAEBREZ
financial assets at fair value CRVEE 2 TS RIEFEE
through profit or loss 124,141 14,122
Change in trade payables ENE SR E (28,190) (12,793)
Change in other payables and E fth & A< FRIE R B AT
accruals BRZE 58,459 (457)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

Note 2016 2015
k=3 —ZT-RF —RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(restated)
(g&E51)
Cash generated from/(used in) SEEBAG,/ (FR)Z2HRE
operations 83,624 (213,939)
Income tax paid BEATFER (3,597) (2,422)
Other interest paid HtE A~ F & (5,893) (2,538)
Net cash generated from/ BETEHME (A2
(used in) operating activities HEFE 74,134 (218,899)
Cash flows from investing REZTBZRER
activities
Interest received 2 FE 10,851 940
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHENE BERSBEZES
plant and equipment - (482)
Purchases of property, plant and HEWE WERR
equipment (1,919) (15,099)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g AN 39(a) (59,724) (42,903)
Acquisition of a shareholding in g W/N TZHSJE
associates - (195,000)
Cash and cash equivalents of BUEGRE ABRKMEB AR Z
subsidiaries deconsolidated RekERRESIEER 12 (42,717) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMH B AR - (335)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BE K
plant and equipment BT HRIE 63 -
Proceeds from disposal of associates BB A R FTIS IR - 13,857
Proceeds from disposal of club LESmeEMBENRIE
membership 50 -
Subscription of bond REBES (30,000) (70,000)
Net cash used in investing RETBHREAZHESER
activities (123,396) (309,022)
Cash flows from financing RETBZ2RER
activities
Proceeds from new borrowing MERFBHIE 22,465 244,202
Repayment of borrowings 1%5&15 BN (190,123) (35,023)
Proceeds from issue of non-convertible — Z77~A] 2 i (& % AT 15 5008
bonds 90,500 96,220
Repayment of non-convertible bonds EETATBREES (245,000) (68,500)
Proceeds from issue of convertible BATA R E S P15 R
bonds - 65,736
Repayment of convertible bonds BEIRRES - (15)
Capital injection from non-controlling ME DRI R E
interest of a subsidiary - 4,766
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRD TS FE 81,840 633,601
Proceeds from exercise of share options — 77{& 8 I HEFT 13 7K 18 - 6,515
Repayment of finance lease payables BREMNREHERE (25,654) (316)
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Note 2016 2015
Bt ZE-XRF —T—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET
(restated)
(r2&E5)
Net cash (used in)/generated BMETH (FER) B2z
from financing activities R&EH (265,972) 947,186
Net (decrease)/increase in ReREFARELEAZ
cash and cash equivalents R A),/#EinEEE (315,234) 419,265
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E R& &) r 2 6,804 (1,257)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzBeRERE®ER
beginning of year 420,887 2,879
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEGRERAESER
end of year 112,457 420,887
Analysis of cash and cash ReREFAREBEAZHMN
equivalents
Pledged bank deposits BHRBRITER 65,000 237,478
Bank and cash balances Re RBITHEF 47,457 183,409
112,457 420,887
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GENERAL INFORMATION

National United Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The address of its
registered office and principal place of business is Unit 2806, 28th Floor,
Wu Chung House, 213 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company'’s shares (the “Shares”) are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Going concern

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$1,442,449,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at 31 December 2016 the
Group had net current liabilities of approximately HK$223,134,000
and net liabilities of approximately HK$454,698,000 respectively. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Trading in the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited was suspended on 1 August 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
on the basis that the restructuring of the Group will be successfully
completed, and that, following the restructuring, the Group will continue
to meet in full its financial obligation as they fall due in the foreseeable
future.

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

The financial statements have been prepared based on the books and
records currently maintained by the Group. However, due to the loss
of contact with former directors, the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) considered that the control over the following subsidiaries
has been lost from 1 January 2016. The results, assets and liabilities and
cash flows of these subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the financial
statements of the Group from 1 January 2016:

IR RBRELEBR QA
(formerly known as: LU R 8|58 EBAER A F)

FYTEERBEERAR
IFEIEEMEEERERAR
MBI ERHBAERAR
TRERBEESBRAA
HeRmEHEERAR
IWRERBEEE S ERA A
By (LF)REEEBRARA
IERINAKIGHIEEEEERA A
EEMERRERRAA
BRE(EE)REEEBRAR
IR KEIER AR AR
FITEBEBXLBERBR AR
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PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT
Trading in the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited was suspended on 1 August 2016.

On 19 August 2016, an independent investigation committee of the
Company (the “Investigation Committee”) has been formed to address
the situation. The Company has engaged an independent forensic
accountants firm, KLC Corporate Advisory and Recovery Limited (“KLC"),
to conduct an investigation in relation to the suspension of trading in the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. For details, please refer
to the announcement made by the Company on 19 August 2016.

Based on the conclusions of the first stage of investigation report issued
by KLC on 29 March 2017, it is questionable whether certain fuel oil
transaction included sales of HK$304,971,000 and cost of sales of
HK$302,284,000 in 2015 (the “Fuel Qil Transactions”) were genuine.
Accordingly, the Investigation Committee requested KLC to investigate in
the second stage of investigation the whereabouts of the funds involved
in the Fuel Oil Transactions.

The trade receivables related to the Fuel Oil Transactions of
HK$304,971,000 are outstanding at 31 December 2015, as at the
date of issuance of the Second Stage of Investigation Report, the trade
receivables of approximately HK$68,261,000 are still outstanding.

The loss of the Fuel Oil Transactions are calculated by net of the cash
outflow for the cost of sales of HK$302,284,000 and the cash inflow
for the sales of HK$236,710,000, total loss of HK$65,574,000. The cash
outflow of HK$302,284,000 net of the loss of the fuel Oil Transactions
of HK$65,574,000, to the amount of HK$236,710,000 are restated from
trade receivables to other receivables.

BEFEZET
ARTZBHN =T —RE A~ BEEBH
AXSHERATNESER-

ARRERZZB—RFNA+TNBRIBLH
EZEBg((HEZEEDAREEBEBER-
ARBBEE —HB L EERTMER &
BEEHXMAERAAF ([BE]) U ART
ZERNEBMIAEFEEETERAST 15
FLHARBART—RFNATNBHRTE
N

REBEEBER-_Z-—tF=ZA-+thLhBEL
ME - BERAZHREER ETHRHRS
(MhRZ])EERE -2 -—AFNHESR
304,971,000/ 7T K #F & Ak 78302,284,0007%
TN EERM Bt AEZEERRER
HENE_BERASMEZZMEESHNT
&

R-Z—RE+-_A=+—8B EBRHKZH
B EWE 5 304,971,000/ 7T & W E -
REZBEAERETIZEAH BRESRL
68,261,000/ 7T ) AR U [El »

1 22 5 &5 18 5 A< 0 Bk 85 5 X 4302,284,000
BIITH IR SR & 55 %8236,710,000/8 T HY
WERATTEFL - B84 % /565,574,000%
JT ° 3R & 7t 302,284,000 7T 4% 40 B B S 2
5 [E11865,574,0007% Jt % + 236,710,000/ 7T
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3. PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT (cont'd) 3. BAEFEZEY )
Based on the findings in the independent forensic investigation report, BIBEBAZHERELER NEFBYBESE
the Group has made a prior year restatement as below: EETENNNT :
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other E_E—FRFE+-A=+—HILEEE
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December ZHEEEEREMEZEKAR
2015
Effect of
As previously prior year’s
reported restatement As restated
t—FEF5
ERIRE EZ KEY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FAT FAET
Revenue W 2= 382,789 (304,971) 77,818
Cost of sales & B (355,250) 302,284 (52,966)
Gross profit EH 27,539 (2,687) 24,852
Other income Hg A 33,737 - 33,737
Other loss Hith 8548 - (65,574) (65,574)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEE (6,120) - (6,120)
Administrative and other operating TEREEMEERS
expenses (91,998) - (91,998)
Loss from operations REFER (36,842) (68,261) (105,103)
Finance cost & B (23,597) - (23,597)
Fair value gain of derivative instruments ~ $T4£ T A2 A FEUWRES 33,573 - 33,573
Provision of prepayment TR RIE (40,000) - (40,000)
Share of profits and losses of associates — FE{5Hf & 2 50 | R &8 3,728 - 3,728
Loss before tax BRBiAT A 18 (63,138) (68,261) (131,399)
Income tax expense FTERimRx (1,968) - (1,968)
Loss for the year FREBR (65,106) (68,261) (133,367)
Other comprehensive loss: HitiR & 518
Items that may be reclassified to AR BEF PIEE
profit or loss: BmayEA -
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEBREEZ
of foreign operations BE N = (1,462) - (1,462)
Exchange differences on translation REB SN NRMEEZ
of associates [ 5 =5 (5,690) - (5,690)
Exchange differences reclassified to LEMBARKENHEE
profit or loss on disposal of subsidiaries BacvEREHE (3,566) - (3,566)
Other comprehensive income for FRNEMBEWA - MREIE
the year, net of tax (10,718) - (10,718)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANEHEEBRE (75,824) (68,261) (144,085)
Loss for the year attributable to: S\ T AL EEFREE:
Owners of the Company RAREER A (64,413) (68,261) (132,674)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR I 25 (693) - (693)
(65,106) (68,261) (133,367)
Total comprehensive loss for the U TATEMFRZEERE
year attributable to: mE:
Owners of the Company RAREER A (74,028) (68,261) (142,289)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR I 25 (1,796) - (1,796)
(75,824) (68,261) (144,085)
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3. PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT (cont'd)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

3. BEEEZ2EY )
R-BE—HAFE+-A=+—Bz&HEH

December 2015 AR R R/
Effect of
As previously prior year’s
reported restatement As restated
t—-FEE5
FRIRE ge BE5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mm% - BEREHE 61,328 - 61,328
Goodwill EES 326,342 - 326,342
Intangible assets BV EE 178,093 - 178,093
Club membership Mg 150 - 150
Interests in associates iR NCIA s 208,944 - 208,944
Deposits for acquisition of property, WM WE R
plant and equipment B RS 2,629 - 2,629
777,486 - 777,486
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 5,325 - 5,325
Trade receivables FEWE 55K 325,322 (304,971) 20,351
Bonds receivable [ W fE 5 75,780 - 75,780
Prepayments, deposits and ERRE EE R
other receivables Hofth & W3R A 343,847 236,710 580,557
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRZ
through profit or loss ERAE 2,387 - 2,387
Pledged bank deposits BRI ER 237,478 - 237,478
Bank and cash balances RITRBRET 183,409 - 183,409
1,173,548 (68,261) 1,105,287
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5% 73,256 - 73,256
Other payables and accruals H i & BUE R
s ER 56,966 - 56,966
Borrowings B8 251,773 - 251,773
Non-convertible bonds TR ESH 243,959 - 243,959
Finance lease payables R ERERIER 980 - 980
Tax payable FERITIE 28,172 - 28,172
655,106 - 655,106
Net current assets REBEEFE 518,442 (68,261) 450,181
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERRBHERE 1,295,928 (68,261) 1,227,667
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3. PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT (cont’d)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

3. BEFEZESN w0

R-B-RAF+-A=+—-HZ&GREH

December 2015 (cont'd) BAR R & (8]
Effect of
As previously prior year’s
reported restatement As restated
t—-FEEJ5
EATRE ge KEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAT
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Derivative instruments PTETA 223,319 - 223,319
Convertible bonds AR ES 62,889 - 62,889
Non-convertible bonds AR EH 10,795 - 10,795
Finance lease payables ERREHERIE 2,527 - 2,527
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEEE 43,126 - 43,126
342,656 - 342,656
NET ASSETS BEEZE 953,272 (68,261) 885,011
Capital and reserves BEXRFEE
Share capital [N 3,080,114 - 3,080,114
Reserves & (2,162,827) (68,261) (2,231,088)
Equity attributable to owners RARAE ANEIERER
of the Company 917,287 (68,261) 849,026
Non-controlling interests FEVE MR A 35,985 - 35,985
TOTAL EQUITY mER 953,272 (68,261) 885,011
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 4. EAHIIREBIIE BB RE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2016. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards;
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of derivative instruments
and investments which are carried at their fair values. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
the management of the Group (the “Management”) to exercise its
judgments in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgments and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 6 to
the financial statements.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 5. EREHEBE @)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’ s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Consolidation (cont’d)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling interests and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill
is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as that of other
assets as stated in the accounting policy “Impairment of assets” below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 5. EREHEBE @)

Business combination and goodwill (cont’d)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting
rights held by other entities, are considered when assessing whether the
Group has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of
significant influence represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share of the net assets
of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’'d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

5. EREFEE @)

Associates (cont’d)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation
policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have
a functional currency different from the Company's presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Foreign currency translation (cont'd)
(c) Translation on consolidation (cont’d)

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Leasehold improvement 20%-33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9%-20%
Computer equipment 9%-20%
Motor vehicles and trucks 6%-25%
Yacht 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as finance lease payable. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as owned assets.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Customers contracts and customer relationships

Customers contracts and customer relationships are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 20 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 5. EREHEBE @)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead expenditure,
and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised
in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either investments
classified as held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition. These investments are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference between the
receivables’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and recognised in
profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’ recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of
the receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 5. EREHEBE @)

Convertible bonds

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert the loans into
a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price are
regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability and an equity
component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative features embedded in
the compound instruments is included in the liability component. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible loans and
the fair values assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the loans into equity of the
Group, is included in equity as capital reserve. The liability component is
carried as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible loans based on their relative carrying
amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the equity
component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair
value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in profit or
loss as they arise.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group’'s activities.
Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
allowed and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

(a) Revenues from the sales of goods are recognised on the transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered and the title has passed
to the customers.

(b) Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(o]

(d)

Trading fees are recognised on a trade date basis

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

(c)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a ceiling of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution retirement
scheme organised by the government in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC"). The Group is required to contribute a specific
percentage of the payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement scheme. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured at
the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate
to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Taxation (cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Company
or of a parent of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(ili) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Company
or to a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except investments and
receivables to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.
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38

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 5. EXEFEE @

Provisions and contingent liabilities (cont'd) BERIREE (&)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be fit 75 27k A B R m o) A g2 1E K - SR B8
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is E(hE BB BIBRIER LK ER ﬁnm—jgb
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is Iiﬂﬁﬁl' BRIEAEETHIELABERE-
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed BRI ERNE R AREERERAE ST
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are EhatraEES HTeREAAREE
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is Rk FE £ 85 1) 2507 8 B9 AT BE M AR SR R VE B ©
remote.

Events after the reporting period MEHKEE

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information RERNEBNRE R Z EBARDOEINE R
about the Group's position at the end of the reporting period or those KA ERERBI T EENREHEEE
that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are BRAEREE WHEHRE AR - #IFIEHA
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements. Events BREBHREPEREEBELN  AIRPHRE
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in M sF A EE o

the notes to the financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 6. EXHETR EE M

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires RUAEEHBHRRE EEEBAEHEY

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(a) Going concern basis
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends upon the Group being able to

BYs X EEMBBEZRESHELER
MzWBEEN URKABBEZREERZH
B RBFR e R B RERR GRS
AR RE RSB EARARARIFEZEER
BEREEFELHENDE-

& A& 5 BUSR B AT R B K A I
REREFRENERY EXCFEHYME
BRPFAERCHEERRBEAZEZATH
K o

(a) FAESEHEE
ZERBRREBEHELEELRE
HAERMRFAEEET RN TRER"

achieve a successful restructuring and continue its business. Details WHEH¥EKES FIEMEBHE NI BR
are explained in note 2 to the financial statements. =HTEE2 o

(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries
As mentioned in note 2, certain subsidiaries were excluded from
the consolidated financial statements from 1 January 2016. Based
on management assessment and with reference to the latest status
of each of the deconsolidated subsidiaries, the Company has lost
control over these entities during the year ended 31 December
2016.
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6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group's property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This required an estimation of the recoverable amount
(determined based on either fair value less costs of disposal or
value in use) of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The estimated
fair value less costs of disposal is assumed to have no significant
difference on the price determined in an arm’s length transaction.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2016 was HK$nil
(31 December 2015: HK$326,342,000) after an impairment loss
of HK$791,122,000 (2015:HK$nil) was recognised during 2016.
Further details are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

(c) Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

90

Impairment loss recognised in respect of interests in
associates

Management judgment is required for assessing impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related carrying value of interests may not
be recoverable; and (ii) whether the carrying value of the interests
can be supported by the recoverable amount. Changing the
estimations used by management in assessing impairment could
materially affect the recoverable amount used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group's consolidated financial position
and results of operations. At the end of the reporting period, the
carrying value of interests in associates were approximately HK$nil
(2015: approximately HK$208,944,000) after an impairment loss of
HK$208,944,000 (2015:HK$nil) was recognised during 2016.

Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss on trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables based on assessments
of the recoverability of the trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgments and estimates.

Current income tax

Judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation. There
are many transactions and calculation for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the original course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
current income tax in the periods in which the differences arise.

Estimated useful lives and amortisation method of intangible
assets

The Group estimates useful lives of intangible assets based on
historical experience and estimates of the average economic life
of the customers base (relationship) taken into account certain
quantitative factors such as sale expectations, growth prospects and
renewal of contracts. The Group amortises the intangible assets
using the straight-line amortisation method. The Group believes this
method systematically reflects the pattern in which the economic
benefits of the intangible asset are consumed or otherwise used up.
Should the actual useful life of an asset differ from the estimated
useful life, future operating results could be positively or negatively
affected.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

6. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(h) Derivative instruments — contingent consideration and profit
guarantee
In the calculation of the contingent consideration as part of the
consideration of the acquisition of subsidiaries, it is the Directors’
judgment that the acquired subsidiaries shall partly (2015: fully)
fulfill the profit guarantee based on the actual result of the
acquired subsidiaries. At 31 December 2016, the fair value of the
contingent consideration were approximately HK$10,000,000 (2015:
HK$223,319,000).

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels

6. ERHERFEME @)

A THABER 2 EZRR (/)
(h) 7T A-HAREREFRE

Rt B RARE (EAKBHEATNRE
H—E380 ) EEREBMKEKHE R R
JEREFMKERBARMNEREEBITIH
D ZE—RE: 2%) AR FRE -
T—RE+_A=+—8 HAREHA
F{E#) 410,000,000 (- E—F%F:
223,319,000 7T ) °

AT B
RFEATS2EERFEAREEFR ST
HEEEMTE S EE A BT STHER - A
TRFEAEZEEDERAFEBA B
AEATEMBZHEERMZBABESES

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value: =4

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for E— A AREFERFEHHRERE
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access 2 ERBERNTRMENEN
at the measurement date. WE (REFHE) -

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level F Mg A BEXBGEZEEXBED
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 2 HRGAZIE BAE R
directly or indirectly. BRI

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. F =M A BEXIAGBZIERE A

EI87 3 g -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any NEBZ7HEANERNEE 7 EHH G RE

of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances EHMERA-—EBR 7 EAREL-

that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2016: (@) RZZE—ARFE+-_A=+—HZAVFEE

(e
Fair value measurements using: Total
FERAUTAFEBRZAFETE: Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
B EZR EF=R —E-XREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FExT FET THET
Recurring fair value KEMATETE:
measurements:
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value BRATEMABHE EREE
through profit or loss
- funds investment —-HERE 2,325 - - 2,325
Liabilities g
Derivative instruments fTETA - - 10,000 10,000
Total recurring fair value BEENTEFEE
measurements 2,325 - 10,000 12,325
BRE & ERIERER AR
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (cont'd) 7. XEETE (80
(a) (cont'd) (@) (&)
Fair value measurements using: Total
FRATAFEERZ AFEE: BE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
F—H B E=H —E-FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FAT
Recurring fair value KEERATENE:
measurements:
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value BATEFAEZ eBEE
through profit or loss
- funds investment ~E&8E 2,387 - - 2,387
Liabilities a8
Derivative instruments TETR - - 223,319 223,319
Total recurring fair value REEATETELT
measurements 2,387 - 223,319 225,706
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair value based on level 3: (b) BEEF=HZATEFEZABEHEK:
Derivative
instruments
fTETA
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—HA—H 223,319
Total gains recognised in profit or loss RiBm R = B (213,319)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H 10,000
(#) Included gains or losses for liabilities held at HERERAREHRFEaE 2 W EEE
end of report period (213,319)
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 January 2015 RZZT—HF—HA—H -
Issues 1T 256,892
Total gains recognised in profit or loss RIBm R = B (33,573)
At 31 December 2015 WZZE—RF+-_A=+—H 223,319
(#) Included gains or losses for liabilities held at HBEERRERRFEEE 2R EHEE
end of report period (33,573)
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B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (cont'd) 7. 2¥EFE @
Valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at () RZE—XRFE+-_A=1T—HBARAFE
31 December 2016: FTE 2 b E BT R A BUR
The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair value REFZHEAOEB ST BRE R aE
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting TEELEBEATESE BEE=Z4HAD
purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The financial FEAE KL EEREESSERX
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair ENFEAE HBRQREHEESTF &
value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results DML EBIERER -
are held between the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.
For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally ME—RATEAEMS AEEBBREE
engage external valuation experts with the recognised professional Bk AR EEER T ELE 2N
qualifications and recent experience to perform the valuations. I EERETEHE-
Level 3 fair value measurements F=RPFEFTE
Effect on
fair value
Valuation for increase Fair value
Description technique Inputs Range  of inputs 2016
BAYE
BmEATE ZB-R%
BR HER BAYE &E E2 ZATE
HK$'000
THR
Liabilities 8f
Derivative instruments fTETR Binomial Option Share price HK$0.14  Increase 10,000
Pricing Model per share
EABEEERE  RHER BRRO14BT M
Effect on
fair value
Valuation for increase Fair value
Description technique Inputs Range  of inputs 2015
BABE
BIEATE “T-TF
BOR fhE R BABE #E <¥E ZAVE
HK$'000
FET
Liabilities af
Derivative instruments fTETR Binomial Option Share price HK$0.24  Increase 223,319
Pricing Model per share
TEABEEERE  RHER BRRo24%BT  EM

BEREAERIERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments:

Car rental —  provision of car rental services
Online platform — provision of online platform for the
trading and deferred spot delivery services

of precious metals

Resources trading

trading of coking coal
Media and advertising — media and advertising

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax except that interest
and other income, finance costs, unallocated corporate expenses as well
as share of profits and losses of associates.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no
inter-segment sales.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’'d)

(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

8. RESIJWER (@)
(a) TEHHMIBH  BERE BEHEREER

liabilities are summarised as follows: wm
Media
Online Resources and
Car rental platform trading  advertising Total
AERE BL¥A ERES BERES @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TEx
Year ended BE-E-XF
31 December 2016 +TZRA=t-HLEE
Revenue from external customers JER MR EF 2 fiz 14,956 36,781 - - 51,737
Segment result PMEE 7,424 (2,528) (25,365) - (20,469)
Interest income on bank deposits 81777 72 Fll B4t A 3,742
Other income Hilg A 30,990
Unallocated expenses AOERZ (70,824)
Loss from operations mEER (56,561)
Finance cost RMERA (37,604)
Fair value gain of derivative MTETEZ RTERE
instruments 213,319
Provision of prepayment BRFOARE (233,679)
Impairment losses on property, ¥ FEK
plant and equipment REREEE (25,312)
Impairment losses on goodwill ~ BERERFE (791,122)
Impairment losses on BYEERERSE
intangible assets (77,006)
Impairment losses on B E 5 R E B 1R
trade receivables (770)
Impairment losses on REERR 2R
interests in associates HEEE (208,944)
Loss on deconsolidation of BUBGRAARMB AR
subsidiaries B (238,905)
Loss before tax BHATER (1,456,584)
Income tax expense FEHAX 14,135
Loss for the year FRER (1,442,449)
Depreciation and amortisation 4 & % # $4 3,229 5,466 13,113 - 21,808
Capital expenditure ERRY 75 - - - 75
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd)

8. KRESHWER (@)

(a) (cont'd) (@) (#&)
Media
Online Resources and
Car rental platform trading  advertising Total
ARERE BLYA ERES RERES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TET TR
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-XE
+=B=t+-H
Segment assets ITHEE 259,812 49,679 128,578 1,615 439,684
Unallocated assets APEEE 28,880
468,564
Segment liabilities AHaE (254,177) (25,942) (74,983) (434) (355,536)
Unallocated liabilities APEAE (567,726)
(923,262)
Media
Online Resources and
platform trading advertising Total
BLTFAE BRE FERES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THET
(restated) (restated)
(g=51) (g=51)
Year ended HE-Z-1F
31 December 2015 TZRAZ+-HLEE
Revenue from external customers BRIRER 2 s 20,234 32,758 24,826 77,818
Segment result PHEE 6,301 (87,087) 13,766 (67,020)
Interest income on bank deposits RITEFZFEBRA 940
Other income Hip A 32,797
Unallocated expenses FAEAZ (71,820)
Loss from operations KeEE (105,103)
Finance cost BERR (23,597)
Fair value gain of TETAZATEKE
derivative instruments 33,573
Provision of prepayment BRRERE (40,000)
Share of profits and losses of associates ~ JE{G I & 1 Ala FI kBB 3,728
Loss before tax BRERIEE (131,399)
Income tax expense FEREY (1,968)
Loss for the year FREE (133,367)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 925 5,659 5,733 12,317
Capital expenditure ERRAX 84,506 46,552 - 131,058
96 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d) 8. RESHER (=
(@) (cont'd) (a) (#&)
Media
Online Resources and
platform trading advertising Total
®Br¥ea BRES RERES o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT TR
(restated) (restated)
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZB-1%
+=A=+-A
Segment assets IREE 431,890 664,413 100,083 1,196,386
Unallocated assets AOREE 636,387
1,882,773
Segment liabilities FREE (4,875) (100,199) (8,748) (113,822)
Unallocated liabilities AOMERE (883,940)
(997,762)
(b) Geographical information: (b) hEE ¥ :
The Group's revenue analysed by geographical location and AEBIZMED T 2 WERIZMEE D 2
information about its non-current assets by geographical location FRBEECEARFBOT
are detailed below:
Revenue Non-current assets
I = kRBEE
Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—HLEE R+=—A=+—8
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hF —E—XEF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET FHET FET
Hong Kong BE - - 13,914 30,858
PRC i 51,737 77,818 145,614 705,593
Mongolia ES - - 5,813 41,035
51,737 77,818 165,341 777,486
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on the 25 = E R - Y D IRIEE P TR
locations of the customers. E&5
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’'d)

(c) Information about major customers
Revenue from operations of HK$11,507,000 (2015 (restated):
HK$19,394,000 and HK$8,221,000)) was derived from one
customer (2015: two customers) in the car rental segment (2015:
trading of resources segment) which individually contributed 10% or
more to the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.

9. REVENUE
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable by the Group
from business income, the sales of goods and services rendered to
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes are as

8. KRESHWER (@)

(c)

FTEEFEH

7 2511,507,0008 T (T —RHEF
(&) 119,394,000/ 7T 128,221,000
BL)NEREARERE (=2 —H
FAREZHH)FH—BEFL(ZZE
—AF MERP) REBEFEIMEASE
BHE_T—A"FRZZT—HF+=A
= t+—HIEFEZHEI0%IA L

9. W&
WaHEAEEBEEBRA MEFPHEER R
RREIRTE (FNERATE  BRARHERENE) B
WeER Ko JE YR ER R 258 - A

follows:
2016 2015
—ZT-RF —T—RHF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
(restated)
(gEY)
Car rental income AEAERA 14,956 -
Online trading service fee income EGBEIRBBRA 36,781 20,234
Sales of resources goods HEERE M - 32,758
Media and advertising services income B N B ERE KA - 24,826
51,737 77,818
10.0THER INCOME 10. H AU A

2016 2015
—E-REF —ZET—hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 3,742 940
Net foreign exchange gain SN WS 2R FFE 5,563 1,306
Bond interest income BEHMEHA 1,328 5,780
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEME ARz K - 11,356
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE ARz e - 1,020

Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair H &R A FEFAEBZREZ
value through profit or loss EREEZWE 24,078 12,706
Sundry income B A 21 629
34,732 33,737
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

1./ & KR

2016 2015

ZE-REF —E-RF

HK$000 HK$'000

FHEx FHET

Bank charges RITER 1,847 73
Interest expenses on borrowings BRzFERXZ

— interest on convertible bonds — A RRESR ZFE 16,018 1,458

— interest on non-convertible bonds — AR ERZF B 10,692 19,333

— interest on finance lease —mMEREZNE 3,154 195

— interest on bank borrowings —RITEBRZFE 5,893 2,538

37,604 23,597

12.LOSS ON DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
Loss on deconsolidation of the subsidiaries and due from

deconsolidated subsidiaries

N.BUEHREARMBLARAZEIE
BUH GRS A BN AR 258 R EREUE &
AAEMEAR KA

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Loss on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUHARA ARMEB AR 2 BB 152,139 -

Impairment on investment in subsidiaries ~ AM B R AERE ZRE 70,728 -
Impairment on due from FEWEUEER S ARMEB A A

the deconsolidated subsidiaries RIEZRE 16,038 -

238,905 -

As disclosed in note 2 in notes to the consolidated financial statements,
the Directors considered that the control over certain subsidiaries had
been lost since 1 January 2016. The results, assets and liabilities and
cash flows of these subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the financial

statements of the Group from 1 January 2016.

MINEFISIR M P M 2P R BEERA
B2 RF-A-BROCRERETHBELR
AlzERE BT -A"E-A—R8 ZFW
BRAIz2ZEGE BERABULRERECR
REE M BHREIUBEE AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

12.LOSS ON DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(cont'd)

Loss on deconsolidation of the subsidiaries and due from
deconsolidated subsidiaries (cont’d)

Note (a)

Net assets/(liabilities) of these subsidiaries as at the dates of loss of control were as

follows:

(&)

N.EBEGEEARMB AR 2EE

BHGEARMB AR 2B RRERIUEER

B ABRM B A8 2 FR (8)

M5t (a)

FEMT

REEEGIRZBE ZEMNBLARZEE/ (AE)

1 January 2016

—E-X"E¥—H—8
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment mE - BER&RE 1,345
Intangible assets A E 96,750
Deposits for acquisition of property, WEME BERBHEZES
plant and equipment 482
Inventories FE 5,325
Trade receivables FEWE 5 4,420
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERT R8-S K H b B U RIR 118,927
Bank and cash balances RITERREHET 42,717
Trade payables BNE SR (117)
Other payables and accruals HEMEMFIERESTER (12,548)
Borrowings =P (56,100)
Tax payable FEA RS 1B (4,893)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE (24,188)
Net assets deconsolidated BUBMGRAE ANREEFE 172,120
Release of foreign currency translation reserve FRBRINEE R E 4,684
Non-controlling interest SRR M = (24,665)
Loss on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUHARE ABRMB AR Z B8 152,139
Net cash outflow arising on deconsolidation of subsidiaries: BILEEAENBRAREENR SR LIFHE
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries deconsolidated BILGEAAEHBRARZHEERERREER (42,717)
Note (b) B 5% (b)
The amount invested and advanced to the deconsolidated subsidiaries are paid in MERIFEAEAERBEATNIRAEALRENESEDN =
2016. T-REXZM-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

13.INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 13.Fi88ER  (FAxX)
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZET—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEAT IR — H B ST
Provision for the year FREE - 472
Current tax — the PRC Enterprise BVERFR I8 — R Bl (R ZEFRSHE
Income Tax
Provision for the year FREAE 4,814 3,919
Deferred tax EETIR (18,949) (2,423)
(14,135) 1,968

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, the applicable
income tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25% (2015:

25%).

The reconciliation between the income tax and loss before tax multiplied

BEFSHERFAREBELE 2 (AT ER
B FIABE16.5% (ZF—RF :16.5% )&l

st
= o
Eau

RBHBECEMSTE  AEEMRHEZH
BRBZERMBHER2% (ZE—HF:

25% ) °

FR1SELERRR I AT B B RIA T BRI G R E 2 HiR

by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is as follows: mR
2016 2015
—E—XREF —ZT—RfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(restated)
(&E5))
Loss before tax b A ES 18 (1,456,584) (131,399)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of BTSRRI E16.5%
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) —E—AHF:16.5%)
FTEZFIE (240,336) (21,681)
Tax effect on share of profits and losses SEEE ARG RN RERZ
attributable to associates Mg E - (615)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RHBEZENBE AR TRMRE 2
operating in the PRC e 364 (189)
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (5,539) (8,352)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR HHL R X 223,831 21,019
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIEEE 7,545 11,786
(14,135) 1,968
BEREAERIERERAR ’I O’I
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging the followings:

1. FRER

AEBEERNBRDENBRTIEE:

2016 2015
—ZT-XF —T—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA - 24,965
Depreciation e 17,795 9,471
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHE 4,312 6,120
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 980 880
Minimum lease payments under operating AT SEIRBLEROEN 2
lease in respect of: HIRAEKIE:
- land and buildings —t+ i RIEF 10,967 8,788
— office equipment —WRERAE - 27
— outdoor billboards —FONEER - 4,910
10,967 13,725
Staff costs (including Directors’ BEIRAK (BIEEEMHE)
remuneration):
— salaries, bonuses and allowances —¥r®  fEAL KR 15,088 27,069
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — & ¥R 4@ i 5t 2] fit & 575 925
15,663 27,994
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

15.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1555
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing BIRE FTRA - FBQBIEHE383(1)()
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies O OROERAT (BEEEFZRER) R
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about BIE2H BB FRNESME T

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM &
2016
ZB-RE
Equity- Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and  share option scheme
Fees allowances expenses contributions Total
DRERERE RIKEA
e FEREH BRERX g 1 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TET TERT
Executive directors HTES
Lo Ka Wai** BmfE 3,600 - - - 3,600
Feng Yongming** K * 2,400 - - - 2,400
Li Hui* T 1,294 - - - 1,294
Tian Songlin** HRM** 1,800 - - - 1,800

Non-executive directors  FHTES
Mou Ling** BIgxx 840 = - - 840
Yang Liu** T +x 840 - = - 840

Independent non-executive BY FHTEE

directors
Wang Qun** SEREx 276 - = o 276
Zhang Tianmin** RARR** 215 - - - 215
Yang Zhi Shu** g7 E** 276 - - - 276
Lai Ho Man, Dickson** LD Gl 276 - - = 276

11,817 - - - 11,817
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15.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cont’d) 5.5
(a) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d) (a) EEM £ (&)
2015
ZT-HEF
Equity- Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and share option scheme
Fees allowances expenses contributions Total
NEEEE RIKIEF
e FeRE BRERS SRR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THIT TET THT TERT
Executive directors HTEE
Yang Fan B 1,000 - - - 1,000
Lo Ka Wai ERE 3,000 - - - 3,000
Feng Yongming K 2,450 - - - 2,450
Tang Lap Chin, Richard B3R 3 - - - 3
Aminbuhe (= Gkl 176 - - - 176
Li Hui EN 893 - - - 893
Tian Songlin R/ 893 - - - 893
Non-executive directors  FHTEE
Mou Ling 2% 980 - - - 980
Yang Liu HE 417 - - - 417
Independent non-executive B FHTEE
directors
Wang Qun a3 214 - - - 214
Chow Hiu Tung** [ABER 38 - - - 38
Yang Zhi Shu oA 214 - - - 214
Lai Ho Man, Dickson* Bk 158 - - - 158
10,436 - - - 10,436

* Resigned or retired during the relevant year
**  Resigned after the end of the reporting year

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration in respect of the years ended 31

December 2016 and 2015.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 4 (2015: 4) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining 1
(2015: 1) individual set out below:

15.EEME @

(b) TEREBHEMAL
FAXEEREREHFMALRBEDS
(ZZ2-1F WRH)EF HEile kB
RERZINZDF-HEp—R(ZF—1
F-RB)EEZMENNHWT

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E-hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefit-in-kind ¥ & 8 R B HZ 1,182 1,157
Equity-settled share option LA 55 45 B R AR = -
Retirement benefit costs R RAE FI R 18 18
1,200 1,175

The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the MeNFTryEEZEE AL :

following band is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C % 1,500,0007% 7T 1 1

No emoluments had been paid by the Group to the Directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$1,438,382,000 (2015: HK$132,674,000
(restated)) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
6,220,699,462 (2015: 4,768,113,871) in issue during the year.

Diluted earning per share

No diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 is presented as the effects of all convertible bonds and options are
anti-dilutive for the years.

FEBUBMERH AL RS HA L SER
M ERBERSMBEREMBARERS 2
TREN KB B (E

16. X2 FAEAABRIEBRER

BREXEE
ARNRBEABLESREAEBEIREAR
ANE A AL F A E 18 491,438,382,000
BT (T —RF 132,674,000 T
(IEEF) ) RFRNE BT L BB 2 INE
F 19 806,220,699,46208 (- T — 4 :
4,768,113,8710%) 5t & -

SREBERR

HREE T —R"FL-ZT—HF+=A
=+ —HIEFEANME I RKRES LEREDS
AERBEYE QY EZNZMETENTR
BEEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

17.DIVIDENDS 17.8 5
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect FEESTERREBE_ZT—R"ER-_Z—HF
of the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. + - A=1+t—"HULEFERMNEMAKE -
18.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.%% . ]ﬂﬁ%&%ﬁ{ﬁ
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Leasehold office Computer vehicle
Yacht improvements  equipment equipment and trucks Total
GR-£ER
HE  HENERE WAERME ElRE REREE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR T T T T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-H1%F—F—H - 2,373 1,202 517 7,295 11,387
Additions = 13,647 - 662 51 739 15,099
Disposals HE - - - - (26) (26)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR - 199 978 - 47,082 48,259
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - (85) (36) (1,442) (1,563)
Exchange differences ERER - (64) (53) (13) (48) (178)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RF+ZA=+—-Hk
1 January 2016 I 13,647 2,508 2,704 519 53,600 72,978
Additions NE - 1,158 127 115 519 1,919
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUBGA ARKBATE - (1,053) (871) (249) (569) (2,742)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B AR - - - - 151,600 151,600
Disposal HE - - - - (63) (63)
Exchange differences ERZSE - (15) (115) - (5,142) (5,272)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-"§+-A=1+-AH 13,647 2,598 1,845 385 199,945 218,420
Accumulated depreciation: REHE:
At 1 January 2015 R-E—-1%—HF—H - 704 582 119 2,059 3,464
Charge for the year FRZH 1,580 715 260 130 6,786 9,471
Disposals HE - - - - (24) (24)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - (81) (23) (1,118) (1,222)
Exchange differences EXZR - (20) (2) (5) (12) (39)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-RF+ZA=+-HK
1 January 2016 N 1,580 1,399 759 221 7,691 11,650
Charge for the year FAX M 2,729 727 483 63 13,793 17,795
Impairment loss REEBE - - - - 25,312 25,312
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BB ARME R A - (421 (570) (118) (288) (1,397)
Exchange differences ERER - 3) @ - (271) (281)
At 31 December 2016 R-Z-RE+=A=1+-H 4,309 1,702 665 166 46,237 53,079
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2016 R-B-"§+-A=1+-A 9,338 896 1,180 219 153,708 165,341
At 31 December 2015 WZZ-RF+-A=1+-H 12,067 1,109 1,945 298 45,909 61,328
At 31 December 2016 the carrying amount of motor vehicle held by RZE—ARFE+ZA=+—8 FAEERRE

the Group under finance leases amounted to HK$133,036,000 (2015:

HK$3,625,000).
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B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

19.GOODWILL 19.8 8
2016 2015
ZE-KF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Cost: R
At 1 January R—A—H 326,342 1,252,228
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries ISR B A R EE
(note 39(a)) (K3E39(a)) 464,780 326,342
Disposal of subsidiaries HE B AR - (1,252,228)
At 31 December Rt+ZA=+—8H 791,122 326,342
Accumulated impairment losses: RETREES
Impairment loss recognised at 1 January R—A—BERZBEEE - 1,246,983
Impairment loss recognised during the year “F R 2 5 B & 1B 791,122 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE A - (1,246,983)
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 791,122 -
Carrying amount: BRTEIE
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H - 326,342

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the cash generating units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit from
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been

allocated as follows:

REBaHPERZBEERNKBERDEER
HEXBERZEBAHNRSEESEM ([F
SELEM]) BEZEREESEBRNT

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHBT

Car rental HEHEE 464,780 -
Online platform for the trading and E2BE S RBEETEHRRWRE 2

deferred spot delivery services of WEFa(I@8LFAR])

precious metals (“Online Platform™) 326,342 326,342

791,122 326,342

Less: impairment B ORE (791,122) -

- 326,342

The Online Platform business are suspended subsequent to the reporting
period, therefore the goodwill of HK$326,342,000 are fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2016. The Car rental business
are loss subsequent to the reporting period, therefore the goodwill
of HK$429,700,000 were fully impaired during the year ended 31

December 2016.

PEFERBMEBEYERE Bt -#Z
—E-RFFT A=+ BULEFEZAE
326,342,000 T E 2 HRBE - AEHEXER
R EHEEEEE Bt BE - —RF
+ZA=+—H1L¥E 2 %#429,700,000/%
TLE2HRE-

BEREAERIERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

20.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20.BLEE
2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Cost: R
At 1 January n—HA—H 190,063 108,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wit B o /&8 2 A - 82,120
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUB4 A ARKE AR (108,000) -
Exchange difference PN Z5E (25) (57)
At 31 December wR+=ZR=+—8 82,038 190,063
Accumulated amortisation and it RRE:
impairment:
At 1 January »—A—H 11,970 5,850
Provided during the year FRFHREE 4,312 6,120
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUB4RE ABRME A &) (11,250) -
Impairment loss BEEE 77,006 -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 82,038 11,970
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H - 178,093
The carrying amount of the intangible BEEEZEREEINOAT
assets are analysis as below:
Customer relationships EER&
Online platform ®WETFSE - 79,333
Media and advertising HERES - 96,750
- 176,083
Computer software B
Online platform ®WEFE - 2,010
- 178,093

The Online Platform business are suspended subsequent to the reporting

WLETEEBRBESHARREE BEE

period, therefore the intangible assets of HK$77,006,000 are fully TE-RE+ A=+ BHILFEEFEE

impaired during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

21.SUBSIDIARIES 21. B A A
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: R-B—RE+-A=+—RAZHMBRRFEE
LUNNE

Place of Nominal

incorporation/ value of

registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities

Rl [3X:3 04
£ SR EELE BHEAEE ARAEGERADY TEEK

2016 2015
“E-R%E 0%
Direct subsidiaries:
EEMEAR:
Konmate Investments Ltd Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
EXREGRAA ; BT REER
Trade Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
TEERRAT BE VBT EREH
Billions Achieve Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
MEFRAR BE VBT EmER
Asia Construction Enterprise Limited British Virgin US$50,000 100% 100% Inactive
Islands (“BVI")
SHBRECEERAR RRRENES 50,000% 7T EEER
(XBRXES])

Delight Genius Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Inactive
BRBRRAR BE BT LEEH
NUR Industry Company Limited BVI US$1 100% 100% Inactive

(formerly known as NUR Nonferrous
Metal Investment Limited)
ERHEEREXERAR KBRS 1% ERXH
(ATTENUR Nonferrous Metal
Investment Limited )

NUR Financial Holdings Limited BVI US$1 100% 100% Inactive

AXEAEREMERBRAF EBRAES E3 EEXT

NUR New Energy Management BVI Us$1 100% - Investment holding

Company Limited

BFBaE R RERERARA RERNES 1% REEZR

Indirect subsidiaries:

BENEAR:

GMG Media Group Limited BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding and
provision of consulting
services

RERTES (o RELRRRHERRS

BEREAERIERERAR
20165 1 09
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

21.SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 21./ B 2 7 (a0
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities
ZMERL/ BT/
£ AR EELH HEHEAEE FARAEEEERDL TEEH
2016 2015
“E-RE “T-RF
Ideal Honour Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
FRRERAR BB BT RERR
NUR Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
BB EREZARAA BB BT TEEG
Placid Expression Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBRAHE (B REER
First Concept Industrial Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Trading and logistics services
BREEEEERRA ; VBT B 5 RWR RS
Dengyi Investments Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
BEREBRAA EBRAHE (B EEXH
Million Best International Enterprise Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Management services
EERRAEERAT BB VBT EERE
NUR Clean Energy Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
BFREEERERERREGRAR BB VBT EEXH
NUR Industry (Hong Kong) Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive

(formerly known as Asia Construction
International Limited)

AXHEEREE (FE)ARAA EE BT TEXH
(FIERNERERERAR)

Amazing Idea Global Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive

PERIRBRAA EERAHE (B EEX

NUR Internet Investment Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive

AFHEEREMAREFRAR EERAEE E3 EEXH

Glorious Future Logistics Limited BVI Us$100 100% 100% Inactive

REMRARAA EERAHEE 100%7T EEXH

iFrontier LLC Mongolia US$100,000 95% 95% Provision of transportation
services

e 100,000% 7T REEH RS

NUR Investments Company Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive

ARHEERREBRLA RERRES 1% TExH

Million Fortune International BVI US$10,000 70% 70% Investment holding

Investment Limited
REERREFRAR EREXHS 10,000% 7T RERR

1 1 O National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016



21.SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

21. B2 7 (|

Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities
gL/ B8/
£ dMREELE EHEREE ARREEERERD N TEEK
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-nf
Most Billion Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 70% 70% Investment holding
BRBRAA BB BT RERR
Well Link Logistics co., Ltd. Macau MOP$100,000 70% 70% Investment holding
EBRMRERAA B 100,000 P57 RERR
EEBGERERERBRAA PRC HK$500,000 70% 70%  Investment holding
i 500,0007% 7T BEER
THREESHRR ST (FB)ERAR PRC RMB10,000,000 63% 63%  Operate platform
(formerly know as 55 EH ¢ E4 B HE N KETA
2HPOBRAA) 10,000,0007C
(MIBEBELESBR AP LERAR)
Gear World Development Limited BVI US$10,000 100% - Investment holding
RERUES 10,000% 7T RERR
Gold Vantage Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding
THERERAR Bk BT REER
LREHFEFRREEREB AR PRC HK$4,000,000 100% - Investment holding
i 4,000,000 7T REER
ERAERAEREFRAA PRC RMB158,000,000 100% - Carrental
HE ARE REHE
158,000,0007C

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before inter-company

TRIVRASEEA EAEERER ([FEE
iz 2MBRARZEN - HBERRER
REEHHEAIZ S

eliminations.
Name £ 55E®
2016 2015
—E—XRF —E-hF
Principal place of business/ FEEEME MR TER PRC PRC
country of incorporation i F
% of ownership interests/ SEmBRRE R eSS
voting rights held by NCI RERBDL 37%/37% 37%/37%

BEREAERIERERAR 1 1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

21.SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 21.M & A A (m)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHET
At 31 December: R+=-—B=+—8:
Non-current assets EREEE 1,126 84,137
Current assets mEEE 46,938 27,601
Current liabilities MEIAEE (29,831) (7,975)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE - (19,105)
Net assets BEFE 18,233 84,658
Accumulated NCI ZE IR ER 6,746 31,323
Year ended 31 December: BE+-—A=+—-HLEE:
Revenue Wz 36,781 20,234
(Loss)/profit (&8) EF (5,860) 5,221
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (BB BABE (6,424) 3,513
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI DEEFFERERZ
(B8, &7 (2,168) 1,932
Dividends paid to NCI BRI ERER 2R E - -
Net cash generated from operating activities 42 & & AT15 2 30 & F 58 4,667 1,572
Net cash generated from investing activities & & /&S5 2R & F 5 - 1,378
Net cash generated from financing activities @& EE TS 2 30 & F 5 - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R&MERIESEE 2 HNFE 4,667 2,950
22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 2. ABE LTI ZER
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Unlisted investments: FELTIRE :
Share of net assets DIEEEFE - 205,435
Goodwill RS - 3,509
- 208,944

1 1 2 National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd) 2. NBENR R (F)
Particulars of the major associates as at 31 December 2016 are as RIE—RFE+_A=Z+—HZEBHEAQT
follows: HEBEWOT:
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital attributable to the Company activities
Rl A g7/
£ EMREELE ERELXHEE AAREEREEAL TEEK
2016 2015

“E-xE —T-RfF

TRAEBHREREERARA PRC RMB15,000,000 49% N/A Car rental services and
shuttle bus services
e AR NER RERERE X
15,000,0007¢ FEELRE
EETALEAR N EERARAR PRC US$50,000,000 26% 26%  Money lending
H 50,000,000% 7T WE
23.INVENTORIES 23. 78
2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Merchandises SR — 5,325

BEREAERIERERAR 1 1 3
20165



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

24.TRADE RECEIVABLES 2. BN E Z R

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on credit or
received in advance. The credit period is generally 30 days. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables so as
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
the Directors. The Group has concentration of credit risk on certain
customers. As at 31 December 2016, one (31 December 2015 (restated):
two) customers attributable to the Group’s total trade receivables were
81% (31 December 2015 (restated): 92%). The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancement over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, is as

AEBHRRFZESEREBURKNTEZM S
NET EEH KR A308 - REBH N EE
THAEBERRFBURERREERRK &
FEHBRTaNES  AEENEERBREFR
REFREF - RZZE—XR"E+=A=+—8"
— % (ZE—RAF+ZA=+—H8 (KF7) :
MEB)BEFEEASERKE S RIBBAELZ
81% (ZE—RF+-_A=+—8 (K=5) :
92%) - AEBEWEFEHEWE 5 FIBLEHT
BEMEMRKIELEMEERSEE - B
B HRIBIL NGB -

EUESFEENEZARZRESTOT

follows:
2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(restated)
(&E=5)
Within 30 days =+HR 404 9,492
31 - 60 days =+—HZAX+H - 9,477
Over 1 year s —F 770 1,382
Less: Impairments o ORE (770) -
404 20,351

1 1 4 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

25.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER B /NRIE -RERAMWERRKE
RECEIVABLES
Note 2016 2015
k=3 —RNE —hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(g&&E3)
Amount due from associates JE B 2 N B F0E (a) 13,807 24
Amounts due from a non-controlling i CaNEEN T*%
shareholder of a subsidiary FEE AR AR SR FR IR (a) = 14,324
Deferred expenses EER - 2,143
Other receivables H b fE U F 8 15,569 301,202
Guarantee deposit for finance ERmERERIEZ
lease payables REZ 33,522 -
Paid in advance B FRIE 216,083 271,380
Prepayments and deposits B FHIERIRE 35,439 31,484
314,420 620,557
Impairment S E (126,383) (40,000)
188,037 580,557

26.

(a) The amounts due from associates and non-controlling shareholders of a

subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) FEMRESE DR KB D RS R PR AR
HAR 8 R I TE R R o

26 RAFEHFABGZZEMEE

2016 2015

—E—XE —hfF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Market value of funds investment HELEZME 2,325 2,387
BEREAERIERERAR 'I 'I 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

27.

28.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as set out in
note 31 to the financial statements. The deposits are in HK$ and at fixed
interest rate of 1.35% p.a.

As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) approximately to HK$45,443,000
(2015: HK$46,028,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

27.CEABRTERRBITRRESE

=
AEFBBERBTHFERIERARTERIEALR
SEERBTREZEB 2 ER (HRHER
RMTFE3T) o FRUAB TTRHE R IR E 2 F 5 X
1.35%&T 8 °

RZZE—AREFTZA=+—B KEEUA
R (ARBDFEZRITRREEFNR
45,443,000/ 7T ( — = — R % : 46,028,0008
TL) e ARMHIMBINE AT T EISMNE B FIA
BRI -

RITHRESTDREBEE ARITHERMNE Z)FEHF X
BREUHI S, - RITAE 17 T IR Sl 0 M 32 40 R0
BAGERFZRT

28. BV B 5 FKE

ENESFEENEZARZRESTNT

2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within 30 days =+HR 1,984 5,366
31 - 60 days =+—HZXT+H 4,630 -
Over 1 year HBiE—F 38,335 67,890
44,949 73,256

29.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 9. HENFERESEH
2016 2015
—B-AF —T-RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Other payables B b &~ RIE 90,550 18,288
Receipt in advance TE YRR 52,363 23,560
Accruals EEtER 7,237 15,118
150,150 56,966

1 1 6 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

30.DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 30.TET A
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contingent consideration RARARKE
At 1 January m—H—H 223,319 -
At the date of recognition (Note39(a)) REERBH (K5E39a)) - 256,892
Fair value gain of derivative instruments PMETAZAFERS (213,319) (33,573)
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—8H 10,000 223,319

The fair value of the Group’ s derivative instruments at 31 December
2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
that date by an independent professional valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited (2015: Cushman & Wakefield Valuation Advisory Service
(HK) Limited). The assumed fair value has been arrived at using Binomial

Lattice Model.

REEZITETAR-_ZE—RFTA=+—
B2 R ETREBE T F 2 E i S IREET
HHBAERARD(ZE—HF aRTELE
EERAERAFNZBETZHEMSL -
ERERRATERIEA AN EHEE-

31.BORROWINGS 31.16 &

2016 2015
—B-—REF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Bank loans RITE X 61,778 225,218
Other loans HA &K 155,677 26,555
217,455 251,773

All borrowings are repayable on demand or within one year. FEEEERERFINR —FERNESE-

The average interest rates at 31 December were as follows: RTZA=+—HB2FHREMT:
2016 2015
—E-AF —E-u%
Bank loan (1) RITE (1) 4.35% 4.35%
Bank loan (2) RITER(2) Nil & 4.07%
Other loans HMmER Nil & Nil £

The bank loan is secured by a charge over the Group’s pledged bank

deposits.

RITERARE BB ERRITERIERIEM -

BEREAERIERERAR 1 1 7
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32.CONVERTIBLE BONDS .7 ERES

On 25 November 2014, the Company issued a convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$30,000,000 which bear interest at a rate of 6%
per annum (the “2014CB"). The 2014CB is convertible at the option of
the bondholders into ordinary shares of the Company within 12 months
from the date of issue, at a conversion price of HK$0.23 per conversion
shares (subject to adjustment). And a maximum of 130,434,782
conversion shares can be issued. All the remaining 2014CB is converted
or redeemed during the year ended 31 December 2015. Thus the
balance for 2014CB at 31 December 2016 was nil.

On 27 October 2015, the Company issued a convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$65,735,900 which bear interest rate of 4.5% per
annum. (the “2015CB"). The 2015CB is convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company within 24 months from the date of issue at a conversion
price of HK$0.265 per conversion share (subject to adjustment), and
a maximum of 248,060,000 conversion shares can be issued. At 31
December 2016, the outstanding principal amount are HK$26,500,000.

On 10 November 2015, the Company issued a zero-coupon convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (the “QDCB1") as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of 70% equity interest
in the entire issued share capital of Million Fortune International
Investment Limited. The QDCB1 is convertible into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue and its maturity
date at a conversion price of HK$0.40 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment), and a maximum of 300,000,000 conversion shares can
be issued. All the QDCB1 will be redeemed by the Company at par on
9 November 2018. At 31 December 2016, the outstanding principal
amount are HK$55,580,000.

On 31 August 2016, the Company issued a convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$140,000,000 (the “TMCB1") which bear interest
rate of 3% per annum as part of the consideration for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in the entire issued share capital of Gear World
Development Limited. The TMCB1 are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue and its maturity
date at a conversion price of HK$0.30 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment), and a maximum of 466,666,666 conversion shares can be
issued. At 31 December 2016, the outstanding principal amount are
HK$140,000,000.

1 1 8 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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BT _Z-—NFIRREHF2LHEINEE=
E-AF+ A=+ RALFERNEBRNE
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RZZE—EF+A-FTtA AARBITAE
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CE-RFABRESFETE AR =TT
BANERAALALTAR BREATR
B 50.2658 7T (A] THAE) - &L AI#1T
248,060,000k MR MD - R T —NF+=
A=+—H KWK EXEE A26,500,0007%
5o

RZZE—AF+—AB+H ARBIETALE
#3120,000,0008 Tt 2 TE S A MRES ([F
SMBRES—]) FAKERERRRES
BARZIMEEHITRAZ70%M#E 75D R
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HREMEREBRARNR LER BREA
TRERARD0.407E T (A FHE) - A%
£7300,000,000% # 2[R H c AR B H R =F
—N\F+—ANBREEELNES SRR
EHF—RZZ—A"F+ZA=+—H0 KK
B K 4 %8 /& 55,580,000/8 T ©

RZB-—RENAZ+T—RH KAFAETAE
#8/3140,000,000 7L 2 Al E 5 ([R5 A
BRES— ) EIRFEFE3I%E - 1ERIE
Gear World Development Limited® S8 2 817
BRA 2 100% R EB B DR (E - RE ] ] E
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32.CONVERTIBLE BONDS (cont'd) 2. RESF (m
The liability component of convertible bonds recognised at the end of the NREBARE R 2 BREEZBEISLS D
reporting period is analysed as follows: T
2014CB 2015CB QDCB1 TMCB1 Total
—E-mE Z—Z-I1fF EEWER REA#H
MERRES  TBRRES BREH— BEH— st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHEL FEL FHET
At date of issue RETEH
Fair value of convertible bonds BETABRRESATE
issued 118,164 118,164
Equity component ek %) (29,574) (29,574)
Liability component at date TR 8BNS
of issue 88,590 88,590
Liability component BERS
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—A—H 28,135 - 28,135
At date of issue REITEE - 49,579 68,067 - 117,646
Converted into shares BERR G (27,913) (29,593) (27,011) - (84,517)
Interest (reversed)/charged FS (BE) /X (389) 693 1,154 - 1,458
Interest payable classify to DEAEMENRIELZ
other payables JE AT FI& 182 - - - 182
Repaid on maturity date REEHEE (15) - - - (15)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—A8%F
1 January 2016 +ZA=+-Bk
—ZE-X"¥—HA—H - 20,679 42,210 - 62,889
At date of issue RETEE - - - 88,590 88,590
Converted into shares BEERERN - (9,529) (9,529)
Interest charged FERZ - 3,973 6,147 5,898 16,018
Liability component RZT—RF
at 31 December 2016 +ZA=+—Hz
KR - 24,652 38,828 94,488 157,968
Portion classified as current DERTBBEZBY
liabilities - (24,652) - - (24,652)
Non-current portion FEREE S - - 38,828 94,488 133,316

The interest charged for the year of 2015CB, QDCB1 and TMCB1 are
calculated by applying an effective interest rate of 19.16%, 19.74% and

19.76% to the liability component respectively.

—RAFABRRES FEURKESF K
KEBBRES—Z2FRFE Eﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
DO BIERE19.16%19.74% 519.76% ) B
i —Fﬁ+7r
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33.NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS
During the year, the Company issued twelve (2015: seven) 6%
non-convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) with total nominal value of
HK$90,500,000 (2015: HK$96,220,000). The Bonds are redeemable at
the discretion of the Company at 100% of the principal amount of such
Bonds together with payment of interests accrued up to date of such
early redemption by serving at least ten calendar days written notice at
any time before the maturity date. The Bonds will be redeemed on the
date immediately following twelve to twenty-four months after the first
date of issue of the Bonds. The Bonds carry interest at a rate of 6% per

3.1 A ERES

FR ARBETHF_H(ZE—RFE:+
) 48 T {8 490,500,000/ 7T ( = F — A F -
96,220,000 J0) 26% Al & 5 ([ &
%)) - BEFUMARRBBREE AR TR
BRXESRLOHEBRZZEBN BOEH
EHZ2100% A ¢HERBEREELRBHA
FFZABENR - EHERBERESFETERR
WMT-ZEZ-+tHEAEAER - - EHEFRHE
6%:T B WEBFXL e

annum, which is payable annually in arrears.

2016 2015

—ZT-XF —T—RHF

HK$000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET

At 1 January w—H—H 254,754 229,326

Bonds issued during the year RERBEITZES 90,500 96,220

Repayment B (245,000) (68,500)

Interest charged e 10,692 19,333
Interest paid or payable classify to 3 H8 R B E N FRIE &Y

other payables B EAFE (10,091) (21,625)

At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 100,855 254,754

Portion classified as current liabilities NEARBABZIHY (10,963) (243,959)

Non-current portion EmBE D 89,892 10,795

1 20 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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34.FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

35.

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles. These leases are classified
as finance leases and have remaining lease terms of 5 years (2015: 5
years). The effective borrowing rates were ranging from 2.5% to 7.3%
(2015: 2.5% to 2.95%) per annum. The leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payment.

4. BE(TMEMRERIE
AEEHEE T AE -ZEHESEAMATH
EEHTHBAE (ZE—AF 5F) - fF
RZEBFMENF25%%E73% (ZF—Hh
F:25%%E295%) HENBTERBESE
BYW &S ATRS MR LWL HE -

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BREBESTR BREHESSREE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hHF —E—XE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FExT FAT
Within one year —FR 60,170 1,138 43,847 980
In the second year FF 55,562 1,138 44,846 1,034
In the third to fifth years, BE=FEERF
inclusive (BREEREMF) 175,469 1,553 128,696 1,493
291,201 3,829 217,389 3,507
Future finance charges RREE X H (73.812) (322) N/A RAEH N/A i@ A
Present value of lease HMEETZRE
obligations 217,389 3,507 217,389 3,507
Less: Amount due BRI2EARNEEZ
for settlement within FE P 3R
12 months (shown (FIATRSEE)
under current liabilities) (43,692) (980)
Non-current portion IERBEB 173,697 2,527
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 3B5.EERBRE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows: FRBELEHBABEZEHWNOT
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—HA—H 25,538
Acquisition of subsidiaries L B S /BB R 20,000
Deferred tax credited to the statement of AAFRNEBERERZELERE (FHE13)
profit or loss during the year (note 13) (2,423)
Exchange differences ME X =5 11
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RF+-A=1+—HEK
—ET-RE—A—H 43,126
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUBABRKIEB A A (24,188)
Deferred tax credited to the statement of profit or s AFERNIBIFR ZELEFE (H7E13)
loss during the year (note 13) (18,949)
Exchange differences N ERE 11
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H -

BEREAERIERERAR 121
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36.SHARE CAPITAL 36. IR &
2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Issued and fully paid: EEBETRAR:
6,411,770,500 (2015: 5,873,770,500) 6,411,770,5000% (= ZF — R F :
ordinary shares 5,873,770,5000% ) & 7 I% 3,178,754 3,080,114
A summary of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company AATEBRITRANSER MO T
is as follows:
Number of Share
shares issued capital
ERITROHE [N
‘000 HK$'000
T FHT
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HF—HF—H 2,991,767 2,321,311
Shares issued upon exercise of share options 17 {§ & % # f% 2% 77 A% 19 22,860 9,485
Shares issued pursuant to the open offer  BIEAFBEEEHITRD 1,861,664 476,401
Conversion of convertible bond (note 32) B A[ A% & % (Ff3+32) 397,480 115,717
Shares issued pursuant to the share BRI D R EHITIRG
subscription 600,000 157,200
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 WZ-ZT—HAF+_A=+—HK
—E-RF-A—H 5,873,771 3,080,114
Conversion of convertible bond (note 32) & oG (&% (M 5E32) 42,000 16,800
Shares issued pursuant to the share BERGRBBEETRG (MiEa)
subscription (note a) 496,000 81,840
At 31 December 2016 WZZE—-RE+ZA=+—H 6,411,771 3,178,754
Notes: B 5 -
(@) Share subscription (a) RBRHERB
On 11 May 2016, the Company issued 496,000,000 shares, at a price of RZE—RNFRA+—H ARQXGBEHEHAE
HK$0.165 per share under the general mandate granted to the Directors by —E-XNENA+—BZRBWHEIRB—RKRE
a resolution of the independent shareholders of the Company passed at the B(ETPHARARBIRER-_ZE—RENA
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2015 pursuant —HRITZAQRTREER A Fi@iB—IER
to the subscription agreement dated 11 April 2016. EERTEE)I17496,000,0000% Ik 10 fEE

BEFR0.1658 T -
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37.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
a) Statement of financial position of the Company

37. KRBl 2 BMRRARRAE
a) AATZEBHBHRRE

2016 2015
—E-XRE —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 1,710 2,470
Club membership it - 150
Investments in subsidiaries RBRAF 21 - 465,403
1,710 468,023
Current assets RENEE
Bonds receivable FEWE 5 - 75,780
Due from subsidiaries ﬁuﬂﬁ%@ﬁ??ﬂ? - 1,165,740
Prepayments, deposits and NN H b B WK IR
other receivables 1,040 7,020
Pledged bank deposits EEPIRITF R 65,000 200,000
Cash and bank balances Re MiR1THEF 517 97,213
66,557 1,545,753
Current liabilities REBE
Due to subsidiaries XNl O EENGIE ] - 390,000
Other payables and accruals Hth IR Iﬁ&lﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁl 12,721 14,354
Derivative instruments PTTETHA 10,000 223,319
Borrowings EE 69,327 195,673
Convertible bonds AR ES 24,652 -
Non-convertible bonds TR R EH 10,963 243,959
Finance lease payables FE 1~ B B T & B 727 686
128,390 1,067,991
Net current (liabilities)/assets & (&) EEZEE (61,833) 477,762
Total assets less current HEERABER
liabilities (60,123) 945,785
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 133,316 62,889
Non-convertible bonds TR EH 89,892 10,795
Finance lease payables e RE & TR ERIE 1,033 1,760
224,241 75,444
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) EEFE (284,364) 870,341
Capital and reserves EXRREE
Share capital (LN 3,178,754 3,080,114
Reserves B (3,463,118) (2,209,773)
TOTAL EQUITY R (284,364) 870,341
Approved by: KESZ:
Ji Kaiping Guo Peiyuan
LHET BRIE R
Director Director
EFE EFE
BEREAERIERERAR 'I 23

20165



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

37.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
b) Reserves of the Company

37. K REl 2 BRI R R FAE 8
b) XARZHEE

Equity
Share-based component of
payment convertible Accumulated
reserve bonds losses Total
DY ig RRESZ
ERARZRE BEHD BN | @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT TRT FET
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RH&—H—H 46,373 948 (2,281,119) (2,233,798)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEERER
for the year - - (9,895) (9,895)
Lapsed of share options fERIE RN (4,155) - 4,155 -
Shares issued upon exercise of  1T{F B IRER BTN
share options (2,970) - - (2,970)
Equity component of HRRES ERTH
convertible bonds - 68,090 - 68,090
Conversion of convertible bonds &3 A] # % & 5 - (31,200) - (31,200)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RF+ZA=1+—A
at 1 January 2016 R=E-R"F—-H—H 39,248 37,838 (2,286,859) (2,209,773)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEERER
for the year - - (1,275,648) (1,275,648)
Lapsed of share options BREAN (4,937) - 4,937 -
Equity component of ARES 2 BRHH
convertible bonds - 29,574 - 29,574
Conversion of convertible bonds  E# AR E 5 - (7,271) - (7,271)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+=-A=1+—H 34,311 60,141 (3,557,570) (3,463,118)

¢) Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group
(i) Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to the eligible participants recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-
based payments in note 5 to the financial statements.

(ii) Equity component of convertible bonds
The equity component of convertible bonds represents the
value of the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in note 5 to
the financial statements.

1 24 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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37.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
c¢) Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group (cont'd)
(iii) Foreign currency translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 5 to the
financial statements.

38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted in 2002

On 25 July 2002, a share option scheme was adopted by the Company
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the Board may
grant options to any employees, directors, shareholders, suppliers,
customers of the Group and any other person or company who has
contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company at any price which is at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company on
the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the adoption date of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme or the date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting
where the limit is refreshed. The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible person
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme in any twelve months period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of such grant unless
approved by the shareholders in general meeting.

37. K REl 2 M BMRRR R AEE 8

 FAEEFEZMEERE N (&)

(iii) SN B REF
EXRERERREEIIEBYE
WERAEEZMEELZHE - FHER
BB MR I SIS T8 2 & RT IR R
# o

38. B ST E

REIZZ-FRAZERETS
R-ZEZE-FHA-+HA ARRRF—IA
BREAS(ZEZ_FRERED)) &
ﬁt*%%@ﬁﬁtﬂ$ﬁlfﬂﬂiﬁi B R
HER BTPREMGERAIRYAEEZ %
&iﬁ{‘ﬁﬂjfﬁfsﬁz,ﬁ\@/\ij AR LR
% AR ERERRBB AR RN EZER
SERATESE : (\RNREBREE B
Tﬂxfﬁmuﬁszﬁ (N EREFLBREE R
T8z 5 B AR R 8k R A 2 FIg U
Ei&(iii)ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁﬁ@°

RIE-TT - FRERER ST R OBRES R
ZERhEReBE TRER-_TT _FHEEE
FHEIERME B R IR S R R
BREREE BB #HTRN10%  FRERRER
?7&”\}&}&9\\'XAETT&/\iB/\TﬂT‘i— 18 A
HRETERE ST _FHEREFER B
EmME KR BEETZRNDER TFER
RHERZOBHTRMI% -
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38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont’'d)
Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (cont’d)
Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

38. 8 IR AEST & (@)
R-CEBEE_FEMZERETS (&)
BB AES AR R SIS -

Adjusted
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
R A T RABTEE
HK$
BT
Directors 29 November 2007 29 November 2007- 2.5536
28 November 2017
5F T+t F+—AZ+NAH —ET+F+—AZ+NHZE
—E—tF+—HA=Z+N\H
Employees 29 November 2007 29 November 2007- 2.5536
28 November 2017
(= —ETLF+—AZtTANA —EEALFE+-HAZ+NARZE
—E—+tF+—H=Z+N\H
Business associates 29 November 2007 29 November 2007- 2.5536
28 November 2017
EBHEA Tt F+—AZ+NA —ETt+F+—RAZ+NHZE
—E—tF+—H=Z+N\H
Business associates 27 June 2008 27 June 2008- 2.5536
26 June 2018
EBHEA N NFEARNAZTEH ZZEENEFERAZTERZE
—E-NFXAZ+RA
The 2002 Share Option Scheme was expired in July 2012 after the CEE -_FREREAEEEMNBE T AE 25
scheme period of the tenth anniversary of the adoption date and no ZHBER —_E——F+t AEMEBEITARE
further share options can be granted under the 2002 Share Option TEEFERETEIR A RE -
Scheme.
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38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)
Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (cont’d)

38. (8 IR AEST & (@)
R-CEBEE_FEMZERETS (&)

2016 2015
—E—XRF —ZT—hF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
miEsR BRE ik Es3q B R
FIITEE A FHITEE %A
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January »n—H—H 2.5536 17,476,072 3.2000 15,626,540
Adjustment upon open offer R-ZZ—RFtA+HA
effective on 15 July 2015 NHREEEREAE - - 3,955,591
Lapsed during the year FREM - - (2,106,059)
At 31 December BR+=ZA=+—H 2.5536 17,476,072 2.5536 17,476,072

Share option scheme adopted in 2012

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 14 December 2012, a share option
scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company.

In accordance with the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant options to any eligible participants who has contributed or may
contribute to the development and growth of the Group or any entity
in which the Group hold an equity interest to subscribe for shares in
the Company at any price which shall be not less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date on which an offer for the grant of the options; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as shown in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date on which an offer for the grant of the
options; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on the
date on which an offer for the grant of the options.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at its adoption date or the date of approval by the
shareholders in general meeting where the limit is refreshed. At the 2015
AGM, an ordinary resolution approving the refreshment of the scheme
limit and authorizing the Directors to grant share options under the 2012
Share Option Scheme up to the refreshed limit was passed.

R-IE——FRHZBERETE
BEARBIR-E——F+-A+mNBEETY
BEERAS BBy —EEBABRE AQ
RFM—BARARZEBRESE (22— =
FERESE]) -

R _T-—FREREE EFe W RER
EURAREARERZEFRIERELRERZ
BERZAERAEERHARRE A EMNEERR
HBARE - LREBARRRYD - HERBEET
BLIRUTZE&SE VAR RBRHRELE
BEZHE BEBRMEARERMAT 2K
B (MRARBOREZRBBREZENE A
FINERS B EBRAEHRERMRZFY
W (B ¢ R (i) A R BB IR IR 2 0 E
HZmfE

RIE— T — — F AR BIAT R B R g TS
RzBRO#B RS NMSEBERMNE BEET
P2 10% RAXRN IR A S L E A RAR
EOERDETRNZ10% - R-ZB—HFK
FEFRE L BBIET M SRENLA
RERUBE —_ET _FHREFAREES
BEHRZRDHRENEBE -
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38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont’'d)
Share option scheme adopted in 2012 (cont’d)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible person under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme in any twelve months period must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue at the date of such grant unless approved by the shareholders
in general meeting. The amount payable on acceptance of the option is
HK$10.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

38. IR E (@)
RIE——FRMNZBRETE (&)
BRI EA R A IOE SN PMER+ =8B
NEBEF T FHBTENSERAL
MEBREETETCRTRET BT ZRG
G TEBAEHEADBETROZ1% -
5 4V B B AEE B B 2 BRIB R 0B T

BRESEENZFBENAT:

Adjusted
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
RHBH TEH RBRITEE
HK$
BT
Directors 3 September 2014 3 September 2014-2 September 2019 0.2274
o —T-MFAA=HR “E-MFAR=RE
—“T-AFAAZH
Employees 3 September 2014 3 September 2014-2 September 2019 0.2274
(= —ZT-MFAA=R “E-MFAR=RE
—“E-AFAAZH
Business associates 3 September 2014 3 September 2014-2 September 2019 0.2274
EBHEA —E-MFEANAZH —E-WMEANRZHZE
—ZE-AFAAZH
2016 2015
= —E-RF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
SR BB pilik: 350 A R
FIHTEE A FHITEE A
HK$ HK$ '000
BT BT T
At 1 January R—A—H 0.2274 191,554,090 0.2850 204,900,000
Exercised during the year FRITE = = 0.2850 (22,860,000)
Lapsed during the period BRI 0.2274 (47,625,327) 0.2850  (29,200,000)
Adjustment upon open offer R-E—RAF+HA+EHH
effective on 15 July 2015 NG L S0k - - - 38,714,090
At 31 December RT-A=+—H 0.2274 143,928,763 0.2274 191,554,090

128

National United Resources Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

39.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries

9.7 RERERME
(a) WEBHEA R

On 31 August 2016, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of Gear World Development Limited (“Gear World") for
a consideration of HK$800,000,000 which is settled by cash and
issue of the convertible bonds by the Company in the following:
(a) as to the sum of HK$140,000,000 settled by way of issue of
the TMCB1 (note32) and cash of HK$60,000,000, (b) cash of
HK$90,000 000 and HK$190,000,000 to be settled by way of
issue of the convertible bonds (“Consideration B”), and (c) cash
of HK$90,000,000 and HK$230,000,000 settled by way of issue
of the convertible bonds (“Consideration C”). The convertible
bonds may be converted up to 1,866,666,665 Shares upon the
exercise of the conversion rights at a conversion price of HK$0.30
per conversion share. The Consideration B and Consideration C
subject to downward adjustments as detailed in the section headed
“Guaranteed Profit and Adjustment to the Consideration” in the
Circular dated 30 June 2016 (the “Contingent Consideration”).
Gear World and its subsidiaries (the “Gear World Group”) was
engaged in provision of car rental services and shuttle bus services
during the year. The acquisition is for the purpose to diversify
the Group’s revenue sources which may bring additional business
opportunities to the Group in future.

RZE—XNFNAZ+—8B A£EEH
I 8% Gear World Development Limited
([Gear World ]) Z100% B B 1T A
(B /800,000,000 7T A A 7 AE £
REBETABRBRESFSF HROT: ()
H 140,000,000/ LB AT RE A
B ES — (H7:#32) % 3R £60,000,000
BT (b)E F 3 €£90,000 000%
JT }.190,000,0007 7T #% LA 85 77 A #2 f%
BEHR(TREBDIN  ROEFRSE
90,000,000/ Jt %230,000,0007 7T A
BABKRES ([RECI)ZM-R
BHRBERITER TBRRESATREUNE
BESREERMDIIETERES
1,866,666,665% % 17 (K BBR R EC
(IFTH FEERBHA=ZZT—XF
NA=ZTRZEERA RERNRARR
Bl —&) ([HARE]) o Gear World &
HEHE AT ([Gear WorldEE | ) RER
HERFETERERE RFRE TR -
W E ERASE I FARRARER &
RAE®BARNEBERAEIE ZEK-
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39.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 3. RERERME (@
CASH FLOWS (cont'd)
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont'd)

130

(a) WEBHKIE LR (8

The value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Gear World 2 Ui B Gear WorldEE 2 Al BRI B E N &
Group acquired as at its date of acquisition are as follows: BERWEBREH ZEBEWNT
Gear

World Group
Gear World £

HK$'000
FHET

Assets and liabilities acquired: FrifisEERBE !
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE RFE 151,600
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R IE 70
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TER IR - 1R & B H Ath B W kI8 24,442
Bank and cash balances RITRREEH 276
Other payables and accruals HEMENREBERESER (253,783)
Finance lease payables ERRERERE (12,523)
Amount due to directors ENEERIE (7,258)
Borrowings BE (189,440)
(286,616)
Goodwill RS 464,780
178,164

Satisfied by: BEBUAT A -
Cash e 60,000
Contingent consideration HARE -
TMCB1 (note 32) REA MR ES — (MEE32) 118,164
178,164

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEE 2R FE

Cash consideration paid BENBESNRE (60,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired PWEReRERREIES 276
(59,724)

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

39.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont'd)
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Gear World Group is
attributable to the cash generating unit of the Car Rental.

Gear World Group contributed approximately HK$14,956,000
and HK$4,440,000 to the Group's revenue and profit for the year
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition and the
end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2016, total
Group revenue for the year would have been HK$70,781,000, and
loss for the year would have been HK$1,435,329,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of the revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2016, nor is intended to be a projection of
future results.

Major non-cash transaction
Other payables and accruals of HK$223,858,000 are settled by
finance leases payables.

.5 REFRERME (@

(a)

(b)

W BB B A B ()
Ui B8 Gear WorldS B EE 2 HEBBER A
EHECReELSEM-

U BE B OBR R = ¥ 5 B OR UE BRI Gear
World Group# Bl /&7 & B & B U &5 Kok
F#714,956,0007% 7t &2.4,440,0007% 7T

HREBER T —"F—A— A%k i
AN EF AU S B FEIE FE A70,781,000/8
T FNEIEIEEA1,435,329,00078 7T ©
HEAREHRFEARASZ WEKBER =S
—ANF-A—BRK RASEEARBRASE
EERER WG REEEE I RE
BRREEZEA -

FEHBERS
H i JE 1~ 3OE K JE R B 223,858,000
TTARERERMNRELE -
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39.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39%’%?&%}%5%%}%} (48)
CASH FLOWS (cont’'d)
(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities () REZTBHELANEEREE
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising THREFIAEBFEFANREESELNEE
from financing activities during the year: g
Total
liabilities
from
Non- financing
Convertible convertible Finance payables
Borrowings bonds bonds lease activities
RREED

BmERE MEEN
B8 TRREF FTTRRES EA R BEAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FHET FEL FET
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—h&—HA—H 46,473 28,135 229,326 3,628 307,562
Changes in cash flows Rengvs 209,179 49,564 27,720 (316) 286,147
Non-cash changes FRe 8
— acquisitions of subsidiaries — N E AR - - - - -
- deconsolidation of subsidiaries ~ —EUB4RE AKRME LD A (3,879) - - - (3,879)
— additions —-AE - - - - -
- issue — 817 - 68,067 - - 68,067
- converted into shares —BERkGn - (84,517) - - (84,517)
— interest charged —-FMERX - 1,458 19,333 195 20,986
— interest payable classify —DEREMENFKIEN
to other payables FEf 3R - 182 (21,625) - (21,443)
- exchange difference —ERER - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-hFE+_H
1 January 2016 =+—HEZZ—R%F
—H—H 251,773 62,889 254,754 3,507 572,923
Changes in cash flows Rengcv# (173,551) - (154,500) (25,654) (353,705)
Non-cash changes FBRE2EE
— acquisitions of subsidiaries — W BEM B A R 189,440 - - 12,523 201,963
— deconsolidation of subsidiaries ~ —EUH4A ABRKE QT (56,100) - - - (56,100)
- additions -RE - - - 223,859 223,859
— issue for acquisitions of — BB AR 2 BT
subsidiaries - 88,590 - - 88,590
- converted into shares —BERRKH - (9,529) - - (9,529)
~ interest charged —MERX 5,893 16,018 10,692 3,154 35,757
— interest payable classify — N EREMENFKIEN
to other payables FERRIB - - (10,091) - (10,091)
- exchange difference -EREER - - - - -
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—R"F+=A
=+—H 217,455 157,968 100,855 217,389 693,667

1 32 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

40.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for

41.

40. R REBE
RBEER - IS RR A S REHIREE 2R

in the financial statements were as follows: aEmT:
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
(restated)
(ig&E3)
Indemnity related to a former subsidiary HFIHE AR B R mWmE 7,092 7,282
At the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not consider it RIERR - EER A NEB A ERN
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under the above WA E R EmMEREEBERERE
possible claim.
PENDING LITIGATIONS 41. 15 R T &SR
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following pending RIREHFR  NEBAUTRAMNEK T4

litigations:

(a)

In September 2004, a Writ of Summons was served on the Company
by an individual third party demanding immediate repayment of
borrowings of approximately HK$1,600,000 together with the
interest thereon. As the Company had never borrowed money from
that individual third party, the Directors were of the opinion that
the Company had no obligation to pay the demanded amount. In
January 2005, an amended Writ of Summons was served on the
Company by the lender of the Group to clarify that the individual
third party acted as an agent of the lender. The Directors instructed
the lawyer of the Company to handle this matter. The loan advanced
by the lender of HK$1,523,000 together with interest and penalty
of HK$1,149,000, totaling of approximately HK$2,672,000, were
accrued in the financial statements (included in other borrowings
and other payables and accruals respectively) and has not yet been
settled as at 31 December 2016.

The Court has granted an order to adjourn sine die the plaintiffs’
application to set down this case on 15 March 2006. That is to say,
the lender and its agent have temporarily withheld the proceedings
against the Company. This claim has not been settled up to the date
of approval of these financial statements.

—ZEEMFNAA —REAAZE=FRAEAR
A HESR ERENEEE 41,600,000
Bz BERMEBNE - HRARARER
MZAEAE=FEAERKIE BAitE
ERRARABEAINAERERZR
B-RZEZTRF—A AEENERA
MAARBELEEITNER B E%E
AB=ZFTRERAZRE-ZFFEET
ARBEMEEHEBEE ERAMRE
#£1,523,000% 7T 2 B FE R F 2 &SR
481,149,000 7T - & 51 492,672,000/
T BEREBEmR RS ASRIETAEM
BEAREMENFKIBERESER ER
ZE-RETZRA=+—HHKREE

ERER -ZEERFZATRAB#ELE
T ERMMEEDANFARG NE
RARERECEEHARB R FL &
ENEMBRERMERD LREDKRT

+
%l:lo
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41.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(b)

134

According to an agreement entered into by the Company, two of
its subsidiaries and two independent third parties in February 2003,
the Group disposed of a subsidiary, World Giant Limited (“World
Giant"”), a company engaged in property investment in the PRC. In
this connection, the Company has undertaken to indemnify World
Giant for, among others, any increase in the liabilities of World Giant
as a result of any claim for taxation arising from any transactions
effected on or before the completion date of the disposal. In
October 2004, World Giant received a payment request from the
PRC tax authority in respect of PRC property taxes relating to the
property held by World Giant, including the late payment surcharge
levied by the tax authority, of which approximately an amount of
RMB6,100,000 related to transactions on or before the completion
date. The existing management of World Giant had indicated to the
Directors that the amount in respect of transactions on or before the
completion date should be paid by the Company.

In February 2005, a Writ of Summons was served on the Company
demanding the payment of approximately RMB6,100,000. However,
such amounts were covered by the amount accrued in the financial
statements of World Giant at the time of disposal.

Accordingly, in the opinion of the Directors and having obtained an
opinion from the Company’ s lawyer, the Group has no obligation to
pay the above taxes. Because of the uncertainty of the outcome of
this matter, the amount involved of approximately RMB6,100,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$7,092,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$7,282,000), has been shown as contingent liabilities in note 40
to the financial statements.

The Writ of Summons was served on the Company in February
2005. The Company has not received further claims from the
plaintiff up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

In 2014, five customers of AVIC Guojin have taken civil actions
against AVIC Guojin in the court in Qingdao claiming the contracts
of trading precious metals on the platform of AVIC Guojin being
invalid and recovery of the related losses totalling approximately
RMB11,000,000, equivalent to approximately HK$13,131,000. In
April 2015, the court in Qingdao handed down the judgment in
favour of AVIC Guojin in one of the five cases and the successors of
the deceased plaintiff in that case appealed against the judgment in
May 2015. The court suspended the proceedings of the other four
civil actions pending the results of the first case.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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(b)

RIBEARQF - ARRWENB QR LKA
BYF TR -_ZEZ=F_AFTUN%
FAKBLE—HETREUENERE
mW%“ﬂiiﬁ@“ﬂU¥§D°$

AEIG M A EEAEEL BERE
BIEAEZHNBE EWE%&Z%%
ETRIMEEZAAREAR  EHE
ERME MO EERZESELEE R
ZENF+A EEEEPERBE RN
i?%hﬁ%¥m¢l%¥mﬁm@ML

CBEERBE BB REIK - HF
%AEMmmmwmm K ELSERK A B sk
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BEEXRT BRTRBMEZAZZNH
REBRARR AT
RZZBZRF A ARAEREERIN

#) N #6,100,0007TEVE S - AT - AR
HHECREERUNEEVBRR R 2K
TE S A o

At  EFRA(NEBHRAERAREME
F)AEETES N LR BBZER-
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41.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(0

(cont’d)

In May 2015, two customers of AVIC Guojin have taken civil actions
against AVIC Guojin, Qingdao Xinshiyuan Precious Metal Limited (&
EBtRESEAMR AR, and Qingdao Chengyang Sub-branch of
China Construction Bank Corporation ( 1 Bl R RITAR D BR A7)
FEMEE4T) in court in Qingdao claiming the contracts of trading
precious metals on the platform of AVIC Guojin being invalid and
recovery of the related losses totalling approximately RMB1,600,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$1,910,000. The hearing of the case
is still in progress and the court has not handed down the judgment
as at the date of this announcement.

Having considered the foregoing judgment in April 2015 by the
court in favour of the AVIC Guojin and taken the legal advice, the
existing management of AVIC Guojin had indicated to the Directors
that it is not probable that material loss will be suffered by AVIC
Guojin. Therefore, no provision has been made for the above claims.

On 24 June 2015, First Concept served a notice of arbitration (the
“Notice”) on SGS, being a wholly owned subsidiary of SouthGobi
Resources Ltd. In the Notice, First Concept sought the Advanced
Payment from SGS, according to a coal supply agreement dated
19 May 2014 between First Concept and SGS, representing the
prepayment amount advanced by First Concept for the supply of
coking coal by SGS to First Concept under such agreement. The
arbitral proceedings are deemed to have commenced on 24 June
2015, as the date when the respondent received the Notice. As
at the date of this announcement, the arbitral proceedings are in
progress.

First Concept paid in advance to SGS for purchasing coals from SGS.
However, SGS supplied and First Concept collected zero tonne of
coal in the contracted period. As such, SGS refused to repay the
Advanced Payment to First Concept. It is justified for First Concept
to recover the Advanced Payment from SGS by legal action, and First
Concept proceeded accordingly as mentioned above.

SGS has been ordered to pay the sum of US$11.5 million (which
SGS had received as a prepayment for the purchase of coal) to First
Concept pursuant to an arbitration award dated 4 January 2018
("Partial Award”).

First Concept and SGS entered into a deed of settlement on 16
November 2018 (“Settlement Deed”), pursuant to which First
Concept has agreed to accept the sum of US$14,282,070 as full
and final satisfaction of the sums payable according to the Partial
Award. Under the Settlement Deed, SGS shall pay the sum of
US$14,282,070 to First Concept in 12 monthly instalments with the
last instalment payable on or before 30 September 2019.

41. 8 K T 5K (@)

(0

(%)

RZZE—RAFHA PHBEEMET L
HohpiEe SEStHEESBEBERAF
EPEZRIBTRODERAREEHSG X
TRERFHFD RESERBERBNFM
HeFaEBECBZANABUARE
KU E AR RAIB R A& £ 4 AR 1,600,000
JT (FRE R #91,910,0008 7T ) c R 2
RADEETH ERARA NS B #I R
BT R

ZEIAA - -HFHAERMEZT
MEESBEFZHAR RREBEERER F
MESRTERECRESERT  PHE
ERARERBRZAEER ) Et
I 5 5 Bl At FR ER AT ER A o

R-ZB—RFENA-+HBE 8lkA@EX
BRERBRARZE2EMBAASGSHE T
mERME([BANE]) - BAENR &
ERBEKEERGZE (BIEESGSHR =T
—FER AT NBEI) ZFRSGSTHR K
18 - BAISEARE A B i BN B 3RIE
LATE1S SGSIR H (8 2 FE i o (P& AR 7 1
BRAER_ZE—RAFNAZTHBEERAE
BBAMERMAG RNAREHE MERE
FRATE#ErTH -

BISE S MSGSHE B SRR AT 3R - AT

REHHA - SGSRAIE D R EHER
WE AT - Bt SGSIEARR R RIS EE
TN HRIE - Bl B BERITERSGSKRE
BNFEBAEZSE  MAILIF M R
{7 -

BEBSHAE-ZE—N\F—ALBNMHEE
SRTE D EIR ) SGSHWH SR AILEE
11,500,000% 7t (BISGSE W HIE AR E
Bk 2z B FRIAE) -

Bl ESGSHR =T —\F+— A+ HEFI
SOMBRRREE (TRIRERR]) it - 84
FAEES£%/514,282,070F T 2 8
AR KRR EITSGSIRIE S 5 8k 2 1
KB RBEMAERZIE - SGSAER1218 A
HEMEI AN ©RER14,282,070EF T2
B Mk —HABER=Z—NFNA
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41.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(e) On 15 January 2016, t R EEHZ LB A EFZTH R (the Labour
Dispute Arbitration Committee of Miyun County, Beijing City*) ruled
that TMTC shall pay a compensation amount of RMB560,727 to
the applicants in respect of an employee’s death caused during the
course of the employment and TMTC shall also pay the applicants an
dependant pension on a monthly basis. TMTC has made an appeal
against the arbitration decision to the People’s Court of Miyun
County, Beijing City which was rejected on 27 June 2016. TMTC had

settled the compensation amount on 13 October 2016.

(f) On 15 January 2016, It R EEZ LB A FFZ(TH R (the Labour
Dispute Arbitration Committee of Miyun County, Beijing City*) ruled
that TMTC shall pay a compensation amount of RMB560,727 to
the applicants in respect of an employee’s death caused during the
course of the employment and TMTC shall also pay the applicants an
dependant pension on a monthly basis. TMTC has made an appeal
against the arbitration decision to the People’s Court of Miyun
County, Beijing City which was rejected on 27 June 2016. TMTC had

settled the compensation amount on 13 October 2016.

(g) On 31 January 2019, the Company, First Concept Industrial Group
Limited (“First Concept”) and NUR Clean Energy Investment
Limited (“NUR Clean”) (wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company)
issued a writ of summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region against 9 defendants for (i) breach
of fiduciary/director/employee/contractual duties; (ii) conspiracy;
(iii) dishonest assistance; (iv) fraud; and (v) breach of contract.
The defendants are Mr. Li Tao, Mr. Yang Fan (former director and
chairman of the Company), Mr. Li Hui (former director of the
Company, First Concept and NUR Clean), Mr. Feng Tao (former
director and deputy general manager of First Concept), Mr. Chan
Chon Hong (former employee of First Concept), Sincere Logistics
Limited (“Sincere Logistics”), China Wish Limited (“China Wish"),
Sino King Trading (HK) Co., Limited (“Sino King”), and Huge Power

Co., Ltd ("Huge Power").

1 36 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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42.COMMITMENTS 42, & ifE

Lease commitments

The Group leases certain of its office properties, office equipment and
billboards under operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from three months to five years, and lease payments are
fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

As at 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments of
the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

HEHRE
AEERBEEEHECHEEEETHAE
X BAERBRESR - HHEER=EA
ERF HERBEREHANEE TEEXA
He-

RZE-—RNE+ZA=+—8 FEERET
AHEEERE Z RRSEBESAN T A S
A

2016 2015

—E—XREF —T—AHF

HK$000 HK$'000

THET FET

— within one year ——FR 3,955 6,497
—in the second to fifth years inclusive —F_EZFhF (BEERRF) 4,224 4,622
8,179 11,119

Capital commitments
The Group's capital commitments at the end of the reporting period are

EAREE
RIREHR - NEE A AT EARALE

as follows:

2016 2015
—B-REF T
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Contracted but not provided for: BRI B REE:
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - WEREE 78,831 25,272
78,831 25,272
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43.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

138

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial

3. BB ET RS

(a)

F?ﬁt&kﬁﬁf%iﬁﬁ,ﬁJ ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ)ﬂ‘iﬂ%Zx%

statements, the Group had the following transactions with related CERNAEEEEBE A ET NI
parties during the year: % :
2016 2015
—RE —HhF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Car rental income received from KE—MEEQARNREREKRA
an associate 11,507 -
Consultancy fee charged by —FEEE AR WENER &
a related company - 197
A director of the Company, Mr. Tang Lap Chin, Richard (resigned as RARIEEH gt (R-_E—HFE+

executive Director on 17 July 2015), who is also a director of the
related company, has significant influence over the related company.

As of 31 December 2016, other than a balance due to the
related company amounted to HK$878,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$66,000) included in other payables and accruals, there are no
balances outstanding with other related companies.

ﬂ‘?’tEl%ﬂf%ﬂﬁﬁ%)?TﬁE%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ@
PEE HZBABARBMEERAYES
RZBE—RFF+ZA=+—H KBRiTAH
fib B RIB R ERT B R 2 B A Al
2 4E17878,0008 L (ZE—HF T+ A
=+ —H:66,000/% 7T ) Hh - 4 EHH b
BE AR BRI T

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: () KEEFEEEAEME
2016 2015
—E-XF —hf
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Short term employee benefits REEERF
Equity-settled share option expenses — LAMEZS 4% S RE AR AE RS 2 11,817 10,436
Retirement benefit scheme RRAR A ET B AR
contributions - -
Total compensation paid to key FTEEEAEBMERAHE
management personnel - -
11,817 10,436
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 15 to EEWHE—SHBRRY B REWE

the financial statements.
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44.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

U.EEHE T 2EBMT A

BRI EBMITARRERRZEEAENAT

Financial assets tREE
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(restated)
(&E5))
Loans and receivables BER R EWRE
Trade receivables W E 5 IE 404 20,351
Financial assets included in FTATEMNRIA R e REMEY
prepayments, deposits and RBEZCREE
other receivables 174,012 401,228
Pledged bank deposits BRERITE 65,000 237,478
Cash and bank balances e RIRTHET 47,457 183,409
286,873 842,466
Financial assets at fair value BROATETAERZESREE
through profit or loss
— held for trading —FEEE 2,325 2,387
289,198 844,853
Financial liabilities cREE
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost H#ER A B SRAE
Trade payables B E 5 RIE 44,949 73,256
Financial liabilities included in FTAEMENRIBRETER
other payables and accruals ZEBMAaE 97,787 30,699
Borrowings BE 217,455 251,773
Convertible bonds Al #8 R (E & 157,968 62,889
Non-convertible bonds AR E S 100,855 254,754
619,014 673,371
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFAEGZZSBEAE
through profit or loss
Derivative instruments PTET A 10,000 223,319
629,014 896,690
ERBAERLEARAT 139
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45.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45.BiEEMEEEERKE

POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

At 31 December 2016, if the HK$ had weakened 5% per cent
against the RMB with all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year would have been HK$3,466,000 (2015:
HK$9,455,000) lower, arising as a result of the foreign exchange

loss on borrowings denominated in RMB.

Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price risk.
At 31 December 2016, if the share prices of the investments
increase/decrease by 10%, the loss for the year would have been
HK$233,000 (2015: HK$239,000) lower/higher, arising as a result of

the fair value gain/loss of the investments.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no material exposures to interest rate risk in relation
to interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Group as the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of

changes in market interest rates.

(b) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk mainly in relation to its trade
and other receivables, cash deposits with banks and maximum
exposure of credit risk is equal to the carrying amounts of these
financial assets. Cash and bank transactions counterparties are
limited to financial institutions with good credit rating assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

45.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45. B EMESEEERBE (&)
POLICIES (cont’'d)
(b) Credit risk (cont’d)

()

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as approximately 81% (2015 (restated):
73%) and approximately 99% (2015 (restated): 99%) of the
Group's trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest trade
debtor and the five largest trade debtors, respectively. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group reviews the
recoverable amount of the trade and other receivables on a regular
basis and provision for doubtful debts is made in accordance with
the Group’s policies. In addition, the Management reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable
debts. In this regard, the Management consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

On demand or

(b) FERER (&)

(c)

REER AEEREETSEFEER
S THERAEEE S EKRIELNS%
ZE-RF(KEEY) 73% ) RKI99%
(ZZ2—RF (LEY]) :99% ) DA A
FEU AN B2 B £ K FE MR B TS A R ALK FE M (B
EAAEBEHIEEE  AERERAE
AHEERBIEFPLEER ASETE
HAKR T B U B 5 3k % L i FE MR IE 2 AT R
(6] & 58 AR 45 AN 5= B SR L R BR 1E B
Feoih BEREETHEDNSELNEKE
SEBEZAKRE S BRATIREE
BEL RS REBE -RILTE EEE
RE AREZEERBERERD -

REBESER

REBZHEATHNERBRIRTERZR
PELFR UMBERAEBEEZFTHER
eRENENEEHRRBORDESS

AEEZCATORBEE M KA ERRE B
RzemaEISMRET

within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total

EEXF—FR -ERE —ERE @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 31 December 2016 R-B-A"E+=A=+-H TR TR TET TER

Trade payables ERESRE 44,949 - - 44,949
Financial liabilities included in AR FEREER

other payables and accruals ZERAE 97,787 - - 97,787

Other borrowings Hifs§ 251,773 - = 251,773

Finance lease payables ENRERENE 60,170 55,562 175,469 291,201

Convertible bonds AR E S 28,888 208,180 - 237,068

Non-convertible bonds FamkES 16,571 92,118 - 108,689

500,138 355,860 175,469 1,031,467
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B ISR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R F+_A=+—HItFE

45.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45. B EMETEBEERBE (®)

POLICIES (cont’'d)
(c) Liquidity risk (cont'd)

On demand or

(C) mbibﬁﬁﬂlﬁ% (#&)

within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total

EEXI—FA —EWF —ERF @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 31 December 2015 —hE+ZA=+—-H FEL FET TR TR

Trade payables ERE 558 73,256 - - 73,256
Financial liabilities included in FAEMENFERENER

other payables and accruals ZERAE 30,699 - - 30,699

Other borrowings Hifg & 261,638 - - 261,638

Finance lease payables ENBERENE 1,138 1,138 1,553 3,829

Convertible bonds R ES - 28,888 72,380 101,268

Non-convertible bonds AR E S 247,875 11,542 - 259,417

614,606 41,568 73,933 730,107

(d) Capital management d) EXER

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and

to maintain sufficient capital in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments

to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk

characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or

adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of

dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue

new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made

in the objectives, policies and processes during the year ended 31

December 2016 and 2015.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which

is calculated as borrowings over the amount of total assets. The
Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at an appropriate
level. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2016 was 148.04%

(2015 (restated): 30.43%).
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46.

47.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE T — R XF+_A=+—HItFE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD -
SUSPENSION OF TRADING OF SHARES

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 1 August
2016, 19 August 2016, 10 October 2017, 24 April 2018, 31 May 2018,
29 June 2018, 31 July 2018, 14 August 2018, 12 October 2018, 30
October 2018, 3 December 2018, 25 January 2019, 31 January 2019, 29
March 2019, 30 April 2019 and 19 June 2019 relating to, among others,
the update of suspension of trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is still actively carrying out all necessary action to fulfil all
the resumption conditions before 31 July 2019, being the expiry of the
12-months period starting from the effective date of the amendments to
the delisting framework under the Listing Rules.

On 19 June 2019, the Company submitted a resumption proposal to the
Stock Exchange. The Company will use its best endeavour to fulfil all
resumption conditions and resume trading of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 9 July 2019.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

L FERBEBRE

AEEBRENBAYRFECXEREERAGHE
(BB ECTERERMBHRRALREERSE (1
EE))FIEMT

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

For the
six months

For the year ended ended  For the year
31 December 31 December ended 30 June
8z Bz
+=ZA=+-AH ~A=ZtH
BE+-A=t-HLEE EAREA tEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2013
RESULTS E4 —E-Xf —T-1% —T-mE —T-=% —T-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THIT FTET THT THT

(restated)

(m=5)
Revenue ey 51,737 77,818 364,876 194,531 39,287
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLA (B18) /&7 (1,456,584) (131,399) (56,841) 37,945 (417,654)
Income tax FfgH 14,135 (1,968) (12,004) (10,061) (1,942)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)/ AR (1,442,449) (133,367) (68,845) 27,884 (419,596)

Attributable to: il

Owners of the Company AREHEFA (1,438,382) (132,674) (68,647) 31,945 (412,975)
Non-controlling interests R (4,067) (693) (198) (4,061) (6,621)
(1,442,449) (133,367) (68,845) 27,884 (419,596)
At 31 December At 30 June
R+=A=+-8 RAA=+A
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE “E-RE ZT-HF ZT-mEF =% ZT-CZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THEL FHET THEL THET

(restated)

(BE7))
Non-current assets ERBEE 165,341 777,486 146,358 116,753 6,533
Current assets MBAE 303,223 1,105,287 566,031 205,443 59,290
Current liabilities MBAE (526,357) (655,106) (209,527) (48,284) -
Non-current liabilities EnBAE (396,905) (342,656) (303,239) (139,003) (33,788)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) /EERRE (454,698) (885,011) 199,623 134,909 32,035

Attributable to: s

Owners of the Company ARAAERA (461,646) 849,026 198,592 148,755 41,820
Non-controlling interests FERER 6,948 35,985 1,031 (13,846) (9,785)
Total equity WS (454,698) (885,011) 199,623 134,909 32,035
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